
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 

Memphis Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
Engineering and Technical Committee 

Thursday, August 2, 2018 1:30 PM 
UT Health Science Center – Student Alumni Building 

800 Madison Avenue ‐ Memphis, Tennessee 
 

Note: Please fill out a comment card and turn into a MPO staff member to be given the opportunity to speak on any of the agenda items. Comment 
cards must be submitted before the agenda item is brought to the floor. You will be given up to two minutes to provide your comments. 

 

1) Call to Order 
 

2) Approval of April 19, 2018 Minutes  ACTION  
 

3) Memphis MPO’s Administrator’s Report 
a) MPO STBG Unobligated Balance (TN) – Update 
b) 2018 TDOT Multimodal Access Grant Call for Projects – Update 
c) MS TIP Project Status Meeting: August 9, 2018 
d) New Employee Introduction: Patrick Besselievre 

 

4) Performance Measures Addenda for the Livability 2040: Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and FY 2017‐20 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)  ACTION 

Approval of Performance Measures Addenda for the RTP and TIP to incorporate established Safety 
Performance (PM1) measures and targets and future Pavement and Bridge Condition (PM2), System 
Performance (PM3), and Transit Asset Management (TAM) measures and targets. 
 

5) Livability 2050: Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Plan Development Update and Recommended Funding 
Scenario Approval  PRESENTATION/ACTION 

 
6) FY 2017‐20 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendments  ACTION 

 

TN State Road Amendments 
Note: The following three (3) TIP amendments were associated with an Air Quality Short Conformity 
Determination Report (CDR) that was submitted to the Interagency Consultation (IAC) Group for a 30‐day review 
ending on July 31, 2018. 
 

i. TIP Amendment TN‐STBG‐2017‐02: SR‐14 (Austin Peay) 
The Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT) is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by 
adding funds to the SR‐14 Project, from SR‐385 to east of Kerrville‐Rosemark Road. The amendment will 
add $30,000,000 in ACSTBG state funds to FY 2018 for the construction phase of the project. 

 
ii. TIP Amendment TN‐NHPP‐2019‐01: SR‐4 (US‐78/Lamar Avenue) 

The Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT) is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by 
adding the SR‐4 (US‐78/Lamar Avenue) Project, from the Raines/Perkins Road Interchange to Getwell 

Page 1



2 
 

Road into the TIP.  The amendment will add $34,560,000 in NHPP federal funds and $8,640,000 in state 
funds to FY 2019 for the ROW phase of the project. 

 
iii. TIP Amendment TN‐NHPP‐2019‐02: SR‐385 (ITS Expansion) 

The Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT) is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by 
adding the SR‐385 ITS Expansion Project into the TIP.  The amendment will add $80,000 in NHPP federal 
funds and $20,000 in state funds to FY 2019 for the PE‐N phase of the project and $240,000 in NHPP 
federal funds and $60,000 in state funds to FY 2019 for the PE‐D phase of the project. 

 
TN Local Road Amendments 
Note: The following seven (7) TIP amendments were associated with an Air Quality Short Conformity 
Determination Report (CDR) that was submitted to the Interagency Consultation (IAC) Group for a 30‐day review 
ending on July 31, 2018. 

 
i. TIP Amendment STP‐M‐2006‐01: Old Brownsville Road 

The City of Bartlett is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by applying the construction funding to 
the Old Brownsville Road Project, from the Fiscally Constrained Construction Set‐Aside, Appendix A of 
the FY 2017‐20 TIP.  The amendment will add $18,400,000 in STBG federal funds and $4,600,000 in local 
funds to FY 2019 for the construction phase of the project. 

 
ii. TIP Amendment STP‐M‐2014‐07: Germantown Road at Wolf River Boulevard Intersection 

Improvements 
The City of Germantown is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by applying the construction funding 
to the Germantown Road at Wolf River Boulevard Intersection Improvements project, from the Fiscally 
Constrained Construction Set‐Aside Project List, Appendix A of the FY 2017‐20 TIP. The amendment will 
add $3,280,000 in STBG federal funds and $820,000 in state funds to FY 2019 for the construction phase 
of the project.  

 
iii. TIP Amendment STP‐M‐2006‐09: Holmes Road East 

The City of Memphis is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by applying the construction funding to 
the Holmes Road East Project, from the Fiscally Constrained Construction Set‐Aside Project List, 
Appendix A of the FY 2017‐20 TIP.  The amendment will add $12,498,397 in STBG federal funds and 
$3,124,599 in local funds to FY 2019 for the construction phase of the project. 

 
iv. TIP Amendment STP‐M‐2000‐16: Walnut Grove Road East 

The City of Memphis is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by removing the Walnut Grove Road 
East Project. 

 
v. TIP Amendment STP‐M‐2000‐22: Forest Hill Irene Road 

The City of Memphis is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by removing the Forest Hill Irene 
Project. 

 
vi. TIP Amendment STP‐M‐2014‐05: Navy Road Streetscape and Median 

The Town of Millington is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by applying the construction funding 
to the Navy Road Streetscape and Median Project, from the Fiscally Constrained Construction Set‐Aside 
Project List, Appendix A of the FY 2017‐20 TIP. The amendment will add $2,500,000 in STBG federal 
funds and $625,000 in local funds to FY 2019 for the construction phase of the project. 

 

Page 2



3 
 

vii. TIP Amendment STP‐M‐2014‐11: Wilkinsville Road 
The Town of Millington is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by removing the Wilkinsville Road 
Project. 
 

Note: The following one (1) TIP amendment was associated with an Air Quality Exempt Packet that was 
submitted to the Interagency Consultation (IAC) Group for a 14‐day review ending on July 16, 2018.  IAC has 
completed the review and concurs with the Air Quality Exempt Packet. 
 

i. TIP Amendment HIP‐2018‐01: Highway Infrastructure Program Grouping 
The FY 2017‐20 TIP is being amended to add the Highway Infrastructure Program (HIP) Grouping. This 
grouping will be used to fund projects under the U.S. Department of Transportation's Highway 
Infrastructure Programs set‐aside. Projects under this program must meet eligibility requirements, 
which include improvements, rehabilitation, and construction of highways and bridges. The amendment 
will add $3,165,727 in HIP federal funds and $791,432 in local funds to FY 2018 for the PE‐N, PE‐D, ROW, 
and Construction phases of eligible projects. 

 
MS Local Road Amendments 
Note: The following one (1) TIP amendment was associated with an Air Quality Short Conformity Determination 
Report (CDR) that was submitted to the Interagency Consultation (IAC) Group for a 30‐day review ending on 
August 16, 2018. 
 

i. TIP Amendment MS‐LSTBG‐2017‐01: McIngvale Road 
The City of Hernando is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by adding construction funding to the 
McIngvale Road Project. The amendment will add $3,210,572 in federal STBG funds and $2,093,443 in 
local funds to FY 2018 for the construction phase of the project.  Both the City of Hernando and DeSoto 
County are providing local matching funds for the project as noted on the TIP page. 

 
Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) Amendments 
Note: The following eight (8) TIP amendments were associated with an Air Quality Exempt Packet that was 
submitted to the Interagency Consultation (IAC) Group for a 14‐day review ending on July 31, 2018. 

 
i. TIP Amendment CMAQ‐2008‐02: Air Quality Outreach 

The Shelby County Health Department is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by adding funds to the 
Air Quality Outreach Project, which was awarded a 2017 Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program 
(CMAQ) grant through the Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT).  The amendment will add 
$200,000 in CMAQ‐S federal funds and $50,000 in local funds to FY 2019 to continue the public 
education and outreach campaign focused on clean air. 
 

ii. TIP Amendment CMAQ‐2015‐03: Commute Options Travel Demand Management Initiative 
Innovate Memphis is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by adding funds to the Commute Options 
Travel Demand Management Initiative, which was awarded a 2017 Congestion Mitigation and Air 
Quality Program (CMAQ) grant through the Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT). The 
amendment will add $462,260 in CMAQ‐S federal funds and $115,565 in local funds to FY 2019 to 
continue development of a program to reduce drive‐alone commuting. 

 
iii. TIP Amendment CMAQ‐2018‐01: Memphis New Traffic Signals 

The City of Memphis is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by adding the Memphis New Traffic 
Signals Project, which was awarded a 2017 Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program (CMAQ) grant 

Page 3



4 
 

through the Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT).  The amendment will add $990,000 in 
CMAQ‐S federal funds to FY 2019 to install two new traffic signals. 
 

iv. TIP Amendment CMAQ‐2018‐02: Democrat Road Signal System 
The City of Memphis is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by adding the Democrat Road Signal 
System Project, which was awarded a 2017 Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program (CMAQ) 
grant through the Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT).  The amendment will add 
$1,230,000 in CMAQ‐S federal funds to FY 2019 to coordinate the operation of 6 traffic signals along 
Democrat Road from Airways to Lamar. 

 
v. TIP Amendment CMAQ‐2018‐03: Hollywood Street Project 

The City of Memphis is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by adding the Hollywood Street Project, 
which was awarded a 2017 Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program (CMAQ) grant through the 
Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT).  The amendment will add $1,769,400 in CMAQ‐S 
federal funds and $1,179,600 in local funds to FY 2019 to fund protected bicycle‐pedestrian facilities on 
and adjacent to two perpendicular streets in North Memphis, Chelsea Avenue and Hollywood Street. 
 

vi. TIP Amendment CMAQ‐2018‐04: Watkins‐Presley On‐Street Project 
The City of Memphis is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by adding the Watkins‐Presley On‐Street 
Project, which was awarded a 2017 Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program (CMAQ) grant 
through the Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT).  The amendment will add $4,865,940 in 
CMAQ‐S federal funds and $3,243,960 in local funds to FY 2019 to fund appropriate bicycle‐pedestrian 
facilities on North Watkins Street, Cleveland Street, Belleview Boulevard, and Elvis Presley Boulevard. 
 

vii. TIP Amendment CMAQ‐2018‐05: Fixed‐Route Bus Electrification Project 
The Memphis Area Transit Authority (MATA) is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by adding the 
Fixed‐Route Bus Electrification Project, which was awarded a 2017 Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Program (CMAQ) grant through the Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT).  The amendment 
will add $11,120,000 in CMAQ‐S federal funds and $2,780,000 in local funds to FY 2019 to fund the 
purchase of 10 all‐electric buses, 8 electric charging stations, and 4 opportunity charging stations. 
 

viii. TIP Amendment CMAQ‐2018‐06: Bike Share: Installation and Promotion of Campus Smart Bike Share 
The University of Memphis is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by adding the Bike Share: 
Installation and Promotion of Campus Smart Bike Share Project, which was awarded a 2017 Congestion 
Mitigation and Air Quality Program (CMAQ) grant through the Tennessee Department of Transportation 
(TDOT).  The amendment will add $557,569 in CMAQ‐S federal funds and $139,392 in local funds to FY 
2019 to fund the installation of 6 bike share stations and 60 bikes at the University of Memphis. 

 
Transit Amendments 
Note: The following one (1) TIP amendment was associated with an Air Quality Exempt Packet that was 
submitted to the Interagency Consultation (IAC) Group for a 14‐day review ending on July 16, 2018. IAC has 
completed the review and concurs with the Air Quality Exempt Packet. 

 
i. TIP Amendment 5339‐2018‐01 Paratransit Vehicles 

The Memphis Area Transit Authority (MATA) is requesting to amend the FY 2017‐20 TIP by adding the 
Paratransit Vehicles Project. The amendment will add $1,354,235 in 5339 federal funds, $643,817 in 
state funds, and $222,005 in local funds to FY 2018 for the purchase of up to 50 paratransit vehicles and 
will replace some of MATA’s paratransit vehicles that have met their useful life. 

Page 4



5 
 

7) Other Business 
i. Next Scheduled ETC Meeting: November 1, 2018 1:30 pm, Location: UT Health Science Center 

 

8) Adjourn 
 

Page 5



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

Memphis Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 

Engineering and Technical Committee 

Thursday, April 19, 2018 10:00 AM 

UT Health Science Center – Student Alumni Building 
800 Madison Avenue ‐ Memphis, Tennessee 

 
Ms. Pragati Srivastava called the meeting to order at 10:06 AM.  In addition to Ms. Srivastava the following voting members 
were present at the meeting: 

Antoine Hawkins  TDOT  Perry Brown  MDOT 
Austin Cardosi  DeSoto County  Vince Malavasi  Horn Lake 
B.J. Page  Olive Branch  Shea Skeen  Southaven 
Christopher Pate  Oakland  Harvey Matheny  Piperton 
Darren Sanders  Shelby County  Kevin Eason  Shelby County 
Steve Hill  Arlington  Rick McClanahan  Bartlett 
Frank McPhail  Collierville  Tim Gwaltney  Germantown 
Emily Harrell  Lakeland  Randall Tatum  Memphis 
Steven Edwards  Memphis  Jason Dixon  Millington 
John Lancaster  MATA  Randy Richardson  Port Commission 

 
The following Ex‐officio members were present: 

Bobby Williams  W. Memphis MPO 
 

The following Interested Individuals were present: 

Brandon Akins  TDOT  Mohamed Osman  TDOT 
Julie Carmean  TDOT  Brian Copeland  MDOT 
Bob Rogers  SCHD  Sonja Owens  SCHD 
James Collins  Kimley‐Horn  Kenny Monroe  Kimley‐Horn 
Andy Pinkley  Buchart Horn  Ben Ledsinger  SSR 
Wain Gaskins  Cannon & Cannon, Inc  James Stokes  Bass River Advisors 
Suzanne Carlson  Innovate Memphis  Mark Grey  HDR Engineering 
Amanda Meadows  Waggoner Engineering  Peter Kauffman  Barge Design 
Jonathan Smith  Barge Design  Russ Brasfield  Barge Design 
Patrick Neal   Pickering Firm 
 

The following MPO Staff members were present: 

Mavrick Fitzgerald  Kate Horton  Sajid Hossain  Alvan‐Bidal Sanchez   
Jordan Smith  Betty Turner  Nick Warren  Zylavian Watley 
Jennifer Marshall (intern) 
 

A quorum was present. 

 

Page 6

ETC Item #2



2 
 

Memphis Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 

Engineering and Technical Committee 

Thursday, April 19, 2018 10:00 AM 

UT Health Science Center – Student Alumni Building 
800 Madison Avenue ‐ Memphis, Tennessee 

 
1) Call to Order @ 10:06 AM 

 
Ms. Pragati Srivastava called the meeting to order at 10:06 AM. 
 

2) Approval of February 8, 2018 Minutes: 
 
Mr. Tim Gwaltney moved to approve the minutes as presented; Mr. Darren Sanders seconded the motion and the 
motion carried out without dissent. 
 
NO DISCUSSION/QUESTIONS 
 

3) CMAQ Performance Measures (Tri‐State Targets): 
 

Ms. Kate Horton gave a presentation on the CMAQ Performance Measures (Tri‐State Targets). 
 
Mr. Darren Sanders moved to approve the CMAQ Performance Measures (Tri‐State Targets) as presented; Mr. Steve 
Hill seconded the motion and the motion carried without dissent. 
 
DISCUSSION/QUESTIONS 
 
Mr. Rick McClanahan inquired if TDOT was setting one target for entire State or was it broken down so that 
Memphis has one and Nashville has one, etc. 
 
Ms. Kate Horton responded that at this time the Memphis Urbanized Area is the only part of the state (of Tennessee) 
that is required to set the CMAQ tri‐state targets due to meeting the criteria for both population & air quality. For 
this round, the tri‐state area including(TN‐MS‐AR) will set the same targets.  For the next round of target setting the 
population threshold will change and at this time Knoxville could also be included. 
 
Mr. Rick McClanahan asked if the target would be separate for each individual area or a composite for the whole 
state. 
 
Ms. Pragati Srivastava replied that at this point, the State is submitting only one Target and in a few years, Knoxville 
will be added  in and at  that  time guidance will be  requested  from Federal Highway Administration  (FHWA)  to 
determine if the State will submit a combined target or separate target for Memphis and Knoxville. 
 
Mr. Steve Hill inquired if Nashville would be required to submit a target. 
 
Ms. Pragati Srivastava responded  that Nashville did not have  to submit a  target because  they did not meet  the 
criteria. 
 
Ms. Suzanne Carlson inquired about the policy implication for setting targets, how can it help with assessing their 
program, and as the target currently exists it doesn’t describe any difference. Also, could the targets be more 
aggressive or what does it mean to have the targets remain the same. 
 
 
 

Page 7

ETC Item #2



3 
 

Ms. Pragati Srivastava responded that FHWA guidance was followed, which discourages setting aspirational targets. 
Idea is to meet the target based upon the US Census data. As for the advancement of the various programs in the 
area, the target does not say that the programs are invalid. 
 

4) TDOT/MPO Unobligated Balance: 
 
Ms. Pragati Srivastava gave a brief update on the TDOT/MPO Unobligated Balance. 
 
Ms. Pragati Srivastava  informed  the members  that  the MPO  staff will  reach out  to member agencies  to obtain 
updated project status reports. Based on the  information provided by the agencies, the MPO staff will present a 
plan to both the ETC and Board addressing the unobligated balance for Tennessee. 
 
NO DISCUSSION/QUESTIONS 
 

5) Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) – TDOT, Memphis MPO and MATA: 
 
Approval of MOU between TDOT, Memphis MPO and MATA for cooperatively developing, sharing and reporting 
information related to performance measures and performance targets. 
 
Ms. Pragati Srivastava gave a brief overview of the TDOT, Memphis MPO, and MATA MOU. 

 
Mr. Christopher Pate moved to approve the Approval of MOU between TDOT, Memphis MPO and MATA as 
presented; Mr. John Lancaster seconded the motion and the motion carried without dissent. 
 
NO DISCUSSION/QUESTIONS 
 
Mr. Darren Sanders inquired if the MOU is a data sharing agreement. 
 
Ms. Pragati Srivastava responded, that the agreement addresses data sharing & collaboration, making sure all 
entities work together in developing and reporting targets. 
 

6) Roadway Functional Classification Amendments: 
 
The Memphis and Shelby County Port Commission along with  the City of Memphis,  is requesting  to amend  the 
functional classification on Presidents Island, by extending the Harbor Avenue and Channel Avenue to Buoy Street 
as Urban Major Collector, adding Buoy Street as Urban Major Collector and reclassifying Pier Street to Urban Local. 
Staff have reviewed the requests and recommends approval. 

 
Ms. Pragati Srivastava gave a brief overview of the Roadway Functional Classification Amendments. 
 
Mr. Steve Hill moved to approve the Roadway Functional Classification Amendments as presented; Mr. Randy 
Richardson seconded the motion and the motion carried without dissent. 
 
NO DISCUSSION/QUESTIONS 

 
7) Other Business: 

 
i.  Next Scheduled ETC Meeting: August 2, 2018 1:30 pm, Location: UT Health Science Center 
 
NO DISCUSSION/QUESTIONS 

 
 
 

Page 8

ETC Item #2



4 
 

 
8) Adjourn @ 10:26 AM 

 
Mr. Daren Sanders moved to adjourn; Mr. BJ Page seconded the motion, and the meeting was adjourned at 10:26 
AM. 
 

Note:  The meeting minutes are a summary of the meeting. If you would like to review the tape recording of the entire meeting you 
may do so by scheduling an appointment with Kate Horton, Transportation Planner at (901) 636‐7218 

Page 9

ETC Item #2



 

i 

 

 

Addendum 1: Performance Measures 

Page 10

ETC Item #4



 

2 

 

1.0 Introduction 

Performance measurement provides various transportation agencies with a better 

ability to identify and mitigate issues with their respective transportation networks. The 

introduction of The Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP-21) and 

Fixing America's Surface Transportation (FAST) Act requires various transportation 

agencies, including MPOs, to take a performance-based approach to planning and 

programming activities. The Memphis MPO is currently coordinating with regional, State, 

and Federal partners to maintain compliance with Federal laws and regulations related 

to performance management. The integration of performance management 

regulations outlined in MAP-21 and the FAST Act into the MPO’s plans and processes is 

an evolving effort, as various State, regional, and local transportation agencies are still 

in the process of establishing targets and finalizing target setting processes for certain 

performance measures.  

Note: This section was prepared using the most recent transportation act, the FAST Act, 

and was developed with the intent of including performance metrics mandated by the 

most recent legislation. The FAST Act did not change national performance goals 

related to safety, infrastructure condition, congestion reduction, system reliability, freight 

movement and economic viability, environmental sustainability, and reduced project 

delivery delays, which were established as part of MAP-21. For information regarding 

the performance measures included in the development of this plan, please refer to 

chapter 3 of the plan.   

 

 Federal Requirements 

MAP-21 was developed with the intent of creating a streamlined, performance-based, 

multimodal program in an effort to address challenges facing the U.S. transportation 

system. In relation to performance management, MAP-21 aims to increase the 

accountability and transparency of Federal highway programs by improving 

transportation investment decision-making through performance-based planning and 

programming.  

As a result of MAP-21, 7 national goals were established to address safety, current 

infrastructure, traffic congestion, efficiency, environment, transportation delays, and 

project delivery delays; 

1. Safety - To achieve a significant reduction in traffic fatalities and serious injuries on 

all public roads. 

Page 11

ETC Item #4



 

3 

 

2. Infrastructure Condition - To maintain the highway infrastructure asset system in a 

state of good repair. 

3. Congestion Reduction - To achieve a significant reduction in congestion on the 

National Highway System (NHS). 

4. System Reliability - To improve the efficiency of the surface transportation system. 

5. Freight Movement and Economic Vitality - To improve the national freight 

network, strengthen the ability of rural communities to access national and 

international trade markets, and support regional economic development. 

6. Environmental Sustainability - To enhance the performance of the transportation 

system while protecting and enhancing the natural environment. 

7. Reduced Project Delivery Delays - To reduce project costs, promote jobs and the 

economy, and expedite the movement of people and goods by accelerating 

project completion through eliminating delays in the project development and 

delivery process, including reducing regulatory burdens and improving agencies' 

work practices. 

 

The FAST Act continues MAP-21’s overall performance approach, and ensures that 

State DOT’s and MPO’s invest in projects that collectively make progress toward the 

National Goals that were established by Congress. The FAST Act made few adjustments 

to the performance management provisions established by MAP-21 

As required under current the most recent transportation act, the Memphis MPO will be 

required to establish performance targets, and track progress towards target 

achievement, for the following performance measures: 

1. Safety   

1. Total number of traffic related fatalities on all public roads. 

2. Rate of traffic related fatalities on all public roads per 100 million VMT. 

3. Total number of traffic related serious injuries on all public roads. 

4. Rate of traffic related serious injuries on all public roads per 100 million VMT. 

5. Total number of non-motorized fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads. 

 

2. Pavement Condition 

1. Percentage of pavements on the Interstate System in Good condition. 

2. Percentage of pavements on the Interstate System in Poor condition. 

3. Percentage of the non-interstate National Highway System in Good condition. 

4. Percentage of the non-interstate National Highway System in Poor condition. 

 

3. Bridge Condition 

1. Percentage of National Highway System bridges classified as in Good condition. 

2. Percentage of National Highway System bridges classified as in Poor condition. 

 

Page 12

ETC Item #4



 

4 

 

4. NHS Travel Time Reliability 

1. Percent of the Person-Miles Traveled on the Interstate that are reliable. 

2. Percent of the Person Miles Traveled on the Non-Interstate National Highway 

System that are reliable. 

 

5. Freight Reliability 

1. Percentage of Interstate System mileage providing reliable truck travel time. 

 

6. Traffic Congestion 

2. Annual hours of peak hour excessive delay per capita. 

3. Percentage of Non-Single Occupancy Vehicle Travel. 

 

7. Total Emissions Reduction 

1. Total emissions reductions by applicable pollutants under the CMAQ program. 

 MPO Performance Measure Targets 

The Memphis MPO is currently coordinating with regional, state, and federal partners to 

establish performance measure targets for the MPO Planning Area. Apart from 

performance measures related to traffic congestion, MPOs have the option to adopt 

their own performance target(s) or support the State target(s). For performance 

measures related to traffic congestion, States and MPOs must collectively establish 2-

year and 4-year targets. Table 1.1 below identifies the dates by which MPOs are 

required to submit their performance target:  

Table 1.1- Implementation Schedule 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Memphis MPO recognizes the importance of linking agency goals, objectives, and 

investment priorities to the agency’s performance targets, and that establishing this link 

is critical to the achievement of the agency’s performance targets. Table 1.2 

demonstrates the Memphis MPO’s effort to link federal, state, and regional goals and 

objectives to investment priorities and performance targets:

Performance Measure (By Category) MPO Due Date Status 

Safety February 27th, 2018 Completed 

Pavement Condition November 16th, 2018 Underway 

Bridge Condition November 16th, 2018 Underway 

Travel Time Reliability November 16th, 2018 Underway 

Freight Reliability November 16th, 2018 Underway 

Traffic Congestion May 20th, 2018 Completed 

Total Emissions Reduction November 16th, 2018 Underway 

Page 13

ETC Item #4



 

5 

 

 

Table 1.2- RTP Goals, Objectives, and Performance Measures 

MAP-21 National 

Goal 

FAST Act National 

Planning Emphasis 

Area 

Livability 2040 Goal Livability 2040 Objectives 

Livability 2040 System-

Level Performance 

Measures 

Federal Performance Measures 

Performance Targets for 

Federal Performance 

Measures 

Infrastructure 

Condition  

Emphasize the 

preservation of the 

existing 

transportation 

system 

Goal 1.  

Maintain existing 

transportation assets 

and infrastructure  

Objective 1.1 Maintain existing assets as a priority, 

before system expansion is considered  

Objective 1.2 Prioritize strategies to better manage 

travel demand on existing infrastructure before 

adding new infrastructure  

Objective 1.3 Promote construction/maintenance 

techniques, materials and practices that minimize 

maintenance needs over the plan horizon  

Pavement: Percent Lane 

Miles in Good/Fair 

Condition, National 

Highway System, NHS 

 

Bridge: Percent Deck 

Area Non-Structurally 

Deficient  

Percentage (%) of pavements of the 

Interstate System in Good Condition 

- 

Percentage (%) of pavements of the 

Interstate System in Poor Condition 

- 

 

Percentage (%) of pavements of the 

Non- Interstate NHS in Good Condition 

- 

Percentage (%) of pavements of the 

Non- Interstate NHS in Poor Condition 

- 

Percentage (%)of NHS bridges 

classified as in Good Condition 

- 

 

Percentage (%)of NHS bridges 

classified as in Poor Condition 

- 

 

 

Safety  Increase the safety 

of the transportation 

system for motorized 

and non-motorized 

users 

Goal 2.  

Increase the safety and 

security of the 

transportation system for 

all users  

Objective 2.1 Support projects that address an 

existing, identified safety or security need  

Objective 2.2 Support projects, programs and 

policies that advance safe and secure travel over 

the plan horizon  

Objective 2.3 Initiate crash data management 

system to improve data collection, safety analysis, 

and performance reporting  

Reduction in Number and 

Rate of Fatal and Serious 

Crashes 

Number of Fatalities 1021.4 (TN) (677.8 (MS) 

Rate of Fatalities per 100 Million Vehicle 

Miles Traveled (VMT) 

1.337 (TN) 1.668 (MS) 

Number of Serious Injuries 7630.8 (TN) 574.4 (MS) 

Rate of Serious Injuries per 100 Million 

VMT 

9.982 (TN) 1.425 (MS) 

Increase the security 

of the transportation 

system for motorized 

and non-motorized 

users 

Number of Non-motorized Fatalities 

and Serious Injuries 

493.2 (TN) 119.8 (MS) 

Environmental 

Sustainability 

Improve resiliency 

and reliability of the 

transportation 

system and reduce 

or mitigate 

stormwater impacts 

of surface 

transportation 

 Goal 3.  

Minimize adverse 

impacts of 

transportation 

investment on the 

(social, natural, historic) 

environment and 

improve public health. 

Objective 3.1 Provide multimodal, active 

transportation options that reduce vehicle miles 

travelled and air pollution and improve public 

health  

Objective 3.2 Preserve and protect natural 

resources  

Objective 3.3 Support integrated and expanded 

greenway/multiuse plans 

VMT/Capita  

Air Pollutant Emissions 

Land Preserved  

Total Emissions Reduction - 

Page 14

ETC Item #4



 

6 

 

MAP-21 National 

Goal 

FAST Act National 

Planning Emphasis 

Area 

Livability 2040 Goal Livability 2040 Objectives 

Livability 2040 System-

Level Performance 

Measures 

Federal Performance Measures 

Performance Targets for 

Federal Performance 

Measures 

Protect and 

enhance the 

environment, 

promote energy, 

conservation, 

improve quality of 

life, and promote 

consistency 

between 

transportation 

improvements and 

State and local 

planned growth 

and economic 

development 

patterns 

Goal 4.  

Advance corridor and 

community 

redevelopment 

opportunities to improve 

economic development 

and quality of life  

Objective 4.1 Encourage context sensitive solutions 

derived from integrated transportation/land use 

planning efforts  

Objective 4.2 Support complete streets 

implementation (on regional livability corridors)  

Objective 4.3 Encourage access management 

planning and design to maintain minimum level of 

service (on regional mobility corridors)  

Objective 4.4 Identify and mitigate 

freight/residential community conflict  

Number of projects 

identified through 

integrated planning effort 

(transportation/land 

use/economic 

development)  

Economic Vitality/ 

Freight Movement 

Support the 

economic vitality of 

the metropolitan 

area, especially by 

enabling global 

competitiveness, 

productivity, and 

efficiency 

Increase the 

accessibility and 

mobility of people 

and for freight 

Goal 5.  

Ensure the region is well 

positioned to remain a 

leader in global logistics 

and freight movement  

Goal 6.  

Improve multimodal 

access to community 

and employment 

resources  

Objective 5.1 Reduce truck delay on critical freight 

corridors and within key freight hubs  

Objective 5.2 Reduce intermodal conflict and 

delay  

Objective 5.3 Advance an Airport/Aerotropolis 

Traffic Management Authority (TMA)  

Objective 6.1 Improve bicycle and pedestrian 

access to educational, health, and recreational 

opportunities  

Objective 6.2 Expand transit service to unserved 

regional employment markets  

Objective 6.3 Focus complete streets upgrades in 

underserved regional markets with latent demand  

Objective 6.4 Expand rural human services 

transportation services into areas not currently 

served  

Objective 6.5 Improve system access for all system 

users  

Objective 6.6 Advance Travel Demand 

Management (TDM) strategies so support last mile 

connections for key employment origins and 

destination  

Annual Truck Hours Delay  

(Interstate System)  

 

Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Mileage (New 

Infrastructure, Total 

System)  

 

Population, Employment 

Served by Transit  

 

Mode Split  

Truck Travel Time Reliability Index (TTTR) 

 

- 

Congestion 

Reduction  

Promote efficient 

system 

management and 

operation 

 

Goal 7.  

Reduce travel delay for 

people and goods  

 

Objective 7.1 Address critical highway bottlenecks 

as a priority  

Objective 7.2 Focus capacity investment on 

corridor connections to regional employment 

centers  

Objective 7.3 Improve system operations through 

technology applications  

 

Annual Congestion Costs, 

Trucks/Auto  

 

Annual Vehicle Hours 

Delay  

National Highway System 

(NHS) 

 

(Congestion Reduction) 

 

Annual Hours of Peak Hour Excessive 

Delay Per Capita 

- 

Percentage (%) of Non-Single 

Occupancy Vehicle (SOV) Travel 

- 

Page 15

ETC Item #4



 

7 

 

MAP-21 National 

Goal 

FAST Act National 

Planning Emphasis 

Area 

Livability 2040 Goal Livability 2040 Objectives 

Livability 2040 System-

Level Performance 

Measures 

Federal Performance Measures 

Performance Targets for 

Federal Performance 

Measures 

System Reliability (System Reliability) 

Percent (%) of the Person-Miles 

Traveled on the Interstate that are 

reliable  

- 

 

Percent (%) of the Person Miles 

Traveled on the Non-Interstate NHS 

that are reliable 

- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16

ETC Item #4



 

9 

 

2.0 Safety Performance Measure Targets 

On November 16, 2017, the Memphis Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Transportation Planning Board approved a resolution that the Memphis MPO will support each 

individual state’s safety targets, which are shown in the table below:  

Table 2.1- State Safety Targets 

 

By agreeing to support the states’ (Mississippi and Tennessee) HSIP targets, the Memphis MPO 

agrees to: 

• Work with the states and safety stakeholders to address areas of concern for fatalities or 

serious injuries within the metropolitan planning area 

• Coordinate with the states and include the safety performance measures and the 

states’ HSIP targets for those measures in the long-range regional transportation plan 

(RTP) 

• Integrate into the metropolitan transportation planning process, the safety goals, 

objectives, performance measures and targets described in other state safety 

transportation plans and processes such as applicable portions of the HSIP, including 

the SHSP 

• Include a description in the TIP (Transportation Improvement Program) of the 

anticipated effect of the TIP toward achieving HSIP targets in the RTP, linking investment 

priorities in the TIP to those safety targets 

 

This addendum fulfills the MPO’s requirement to include safety performance measures and the 

states’ HSIP targets for federally required measures in the long-range regional transportation 

plan (RTP).  

 

The Memphis MPO will continue to coordinate with state and safety stakeholders to integrate 

each state’s safety goals, objectives, and plans into its planning process by linking investment 

Safety 
Performance 
Measures 

5 Year Rolling Averages 

Tennessee (TDOT) Mississippi (MDOT) 

Baseline (2012-
2016) 

Target (2014-
2018) 

Baseline (2012-
2016) 

Target (2014-
2018) 

Number of 
Fatalities 

995.6 1021.4 633.8 677.8 

Fatality Rate 1.358 1.337 1.606 1.668 

Number of 
Serious Injuries 

7,319.4 7,630.8 567.6 574.4 

Serious Injury 
Rate 

9.976 9.982 1.439 1.425 

Number of Non-
Motorized 
Fatalities and 
Serious Injuries 

434.6 493.2 111.8 119.8 

Page 17

ETC Item #4



 

9 

 

priorities to the State’s safety targets to the maximum extent practicable. Furthermore, the 

Memphis MPO will continue to place an emphasis on maintaining and improving the safety of 

the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users by continually implementing 

the goals and objectives related to safety outlined in the plan, and directing investments in the 

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) toward projects that have the potential to reduce crash 

rates, improve pedestrian safety, reduce speeds, enhance safety design, and incorporate 

security improvements. The RTP process involves conducting comprehensive reviews of safety 

issues for all modes, as well as considering safety as an evaluation criteria in project selection. 

Recommendations of the State Highway Safety Plan are also incorporated. While safety is a 

part of all projects’ scope, additional set aside safety funds are identified in the plan to address 

safety issues specifically.

Page 18

ETC Item #4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADDENDUM 1: PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

 

Page 19

ETC Item #4



 

2 
 

1) Introduction 

Performance measurement provides various transportation agencies with a better ability to identify and mitigate issues with their 

respective transportation networks. The introduction of The Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP-21) and 

Fixing America's Surface Transportation (FAST) Act requires various transportation agencies, including MPOs, to take a 

performance-based approach to planning and programming activities. The Memphis MPO is currently coordinating with regional, 

State, and Federal partners to maintain compliance with Federal laws and regulations related to performance management. The 

integration of performance management regulations outlined in MAP-21 and the FAST Act into the MPO’s plans and processes is 

an evolving effort, as various State, regional, and local transportation agencies are still in the process of establishing targets and 

finalizing target setting processes for certain performance measures.  

Note: This section was prepared using the most recent transportation act, the FAST Act, and was developed with the intent of 

including performance metrics mandated by the most recent legislation. The FAST Act did not change national performance goals 

related to safety, infrastructure condition, congestion reduction, system reliability, freight movement and economic viability, 

environmental sustainability, and reduced project delivery delays, which were established as part of MAP-21.  

2) Federal Requirements 

MAP-21 was developed with the intent of creating a streamlined, performance-based, multimodal program in an effort to address 

challenges facing the U.S. transportation system. In relation to performance management, MAP-21 aims to increase the 

accountability and transparency of Federal highway programs by improving transportation investment decision-making through 

performance-based planning and programming.  

As a result of MAP-21, 7 national goals were established to address safety, current infrastructure, traffic congestion, efficiency, 

environment, transportation delays, and project delivery delays; 

1. Safety - To achieve a significant reduction in traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads. 

2. Infrastructure Condition - To maintain the highway infrastructure asset system in a state of good repair. 

3. Congestion Reduction - To achieve a significant reduction in congestion on the National Highway System (NHS). 

4. System Reliability - To improve the efficiency of the surface transportation system. 

5. Freight Movement and Economic Vitality - To improve the national freight network, strengthen the ability of rural 

communities to access national and international trade markets, and support regional economic development. 

6. Environmental Sustainability - To enhance the performance of the transportation system while protecting and enhancing 

the natural environment. 

7. Reduced Project Delivery Delays - To reduce project costs, promote jobs and the economy, and expedite the movement 

of people and goods by accelerating project completion through eliminating delays in the project development and delivery 

process, including reducing regulatory burdens and improving agencies' work practices. 

The FAST Act continues MAP-21’s overall performance approach, and ensures that State DOT’s and MPO’s invest in projects that 

collectively make progress toward the National Goals that were established by Congress. The FAST Act made few adjustments to 

the performance management provisions established by MAP-21 

As required under current the most recent transportation act, the Memphis MPO will be required to establish performance targets, 

and track progress towards target achievement, for the following performance measures: 

1. Safety   

1. Total number of traffic related fatalities on all public roads. 

2. Rate of traffic related fatalities on all public roads per 100 million VMT. 

3. Total number of traffic related serious injuries on all public roads. 

4. Rate of traffic related serious injuries on all public roads per 100 million VMT. 

5. Total number of non-motorized fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads. 

Page 20

ETC Item #4



 

3 
 

2. Pavement Condition 

1. Percentage of pavements on the Interstate System in Good condition. 

2. Percentage of pavements on the Interstate System in Poor condition. 

3. Percentage of the non-interstate National Highway System in Good condition. 

4. Percentage of the non-interstate National Highway System in Poor condition. 

3. Bridge Condition 

1. Percentage of National Highway System bridges classified as in Good condition. 

2. Percentage of National Highway System bridges classified as in Poor condition. 

4. NHS Travel Time Reliability 

1. Percent of the Person-Miles Traveled on the Interstate that are reliable. 

2. Percent of the Person Miles Traveled on the Non-Interstate National Highway System that are reliable. 

5. Freight Reliability 

1. Percentage of Interstate System mileage providing reliable truck travel time. 

6. Traffic Congestion 

2. Annual hours of peak hour excessive delay per capita. 

3. Percentage of Non-Single Occupancy Vehicle Travel. 

7. Total Emissions Reduction 

1. Total emissions reductions by applicable pollutants under the CMAQ program. 

 

3) MPO Performance Measure Targets 

The Memphis MPO is currently coordinating with regional, state, and federal partners to establish performance measure targets for the 
MPO Planning Area. Apart from performance measures related to traffic congestion, MPOs have the option to adopt their own 
performance target(s) or support the State target(s). For performance measures related to traffic congestion, States and MPOs must 
collectively establish 2-year and 4-year targets. Table 3.1 identifies the dates by which MPOs are required to submit their performance 
target: 

Table 3.1- Implementation Schedule 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Memphis MPO recognizes the importance of linking agency goals, objectives, and investment priorities to the agency’s 

performance targets, and that establishing this link is critical to the achievement of the agency’s performance targets. The TIP criteria 

was developed to reflect federal, state, and regional priorities. In an effort to link investment decisions to regional goals and priorities, 

Performance Measure (By Category) MPO Due Date Status 

Safety February 27th, 2018 Completed 

Pavement Condition November 16th, 2018 Underway 

Bridge Condition November 16th, 2018 Underway 

Travel Time Reliability November 16th, 2018 Underway 

Freight Reliability November 16th, 2018 Underway 

Traffic Congestion May 20th, 2018 Completed 

Total Emissions Reduction November 16th, 2018 Underway 

Page 21

ETC Item #4



 

4 
 

the TIP project evaluation process applies more weight to criteria that support regional goals and priorities. This allows for the 

prioritization of investment decisions that help achieve regional goals and priorities. Table 3.2 demonstrates the Memphis MPO’s effort 

to link federal, state, and regional goals and objectives to investment priorities and performance targets:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22

ETC Item #4



 

5 
 

 

Table 3.2 – RTP Goals, Objectives, and Performance Measures 

MAP-21 
National Goal 

FAST Act 
National 
Planning 

Emphasis Area 

Livability 2040 
Goal 

Livability 2040 Objectives 
Livability 2040 System-

Level Performance 
Measures 

TIP Project Evaluation Criteria Federal Performance 
Measures 

Performance Targets for 
Federal Performance 

Measures 
Criteria Points 

Infrastructure 
Condition  

Emphasize the 
preservation of the 
existing 
transportation 
system 

Goal 1.  
Maintain existing 
transportation 
assets and 
infrastructure  

Objective 1.1 Maintain existing 
assets as a priority, before system 
expansion is considered  
Objective 1.2 Prioritize strategies 
to better manage travel demand 
on existing infrastructure before 
adding new infrastructure  
Objective 1.3 Promote 
construction/maintenance 
techniques, materials and 
practices that minimize 
maintenance needs over the plan 
horizon  

Pavement: Percent Lane Miles 
in Good/Fair Condition, 
National Highway System, NHS 
 
Bridge: Percent Deck Area Non-
Structurally Deficient 

Project Improves or 
Maintains an Existing 
Roadway or Transit 
Operation 

6 Percentage (%) of pavements of 
the Interstate System in Good 
Condition 

- 

Project Upgrades Route 
(Design Improvements, 
Complete Streets, Etc.) 

3 Percentage (%) of pavements of 
the Interstate System in Poor 
Condition 

- 
 

Project Integrates ITS 
Service Packages included in 
the MPO's Regional ITS 
Architecture 

2 Percentage (%) of pavements of 
the Non- Interstate NHS in Good 
Condition 

- 

Existing Average Daily 
Traffic (ADT) 

5 Percentage (%) of pavements of 
the Non- Interstate NHS in Poor 
Condition 

- 

Percentage (%)of NHS bridges 
classified as in Good Condition 

- 
 

Percentage (%)of NHS bridges 
classified as in Poor Condition 

- 
 
 

Safety  Increase the safety 
of the 
transportation 
system for 
motorized and non-
motorized users 

Goal 2.  
Increase the safety 
and security of the 
transportation 
system for all users  

Objective 2.1 Support projects 
that address an existing, 
identified safety or security need  
Objective 2.2 Support projects, 
programs and policies that 
advance safe and secure travel 
over the plan horizon  
Objective 2.3 Initiate crash data 
management system to improve 
data collection, safety analysis, 
and performance reporting  

Reduction in Number and Rate 
of Fatal and Serious Crashes 

Accident Rate 8 Number of Fatalities 1021.4 (TN) (677.8 (MS) 

Project Incorporates Traffic 
Calming and Design 
Improvements (Maximum 
Combined Points) 

4 Rate of Fatalities per 100 Million 
Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) 

1.337 (TN) 1.668 (MS) 

Number of Serious Injuries 7630.8 (TN) 574.4 (MS) 

Rate of Serious Injuries per 100 
Million VMT 

9.982 (TN) 1.425 (MS) 

Project Incorporates 
Security Improvements 
(surveillance cameras, 
lighting, emergency access, 
etc.) 

4 

Increase the 
security of the 
transportation 
system for 
motorized and non-
motorized users 

Number of Non-motorized 
Fatalities and Serious Injuries 

493.2 (TN) 119.8 (MS) 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

Improve resiliency 
and reliability of 
the transportation 
system and reduce 
or mitigate 
stormwater 
impacts of surface 
transportation 
 
 
 
 

 Goal 3.  
Minimize adverse 
impacts of 
transportation 
investment on the 
(social, natural, 
historic) 
environment and 
improve public 
health. 

Objective 3.1 Provide multimodal, 
active transportation options that 
reduce vehicle miles travelled and 
air pollution and improve public 
health  
Objective 3.2 Preserve and 
protect natural resources  
Objective 3.3 Support integrated 
and expanded greenway/multiuse 
plans 

VMT/Capita  
Air Pollutant Emissions 
Land Preserved  

Environmental Justice 
Impacts (Maximum 
Combined Points) 

3 Total Emissions Reduction - 

Environmental Impacts 3 

Negative Environmental 
Justice and/or 
Environmental Impacts 

-6 

Project Provides Linkages 
Between Different Land 
Uses 

3 

Adopted Plans 2 

Page 23

ETC Item #4



 

6 
 

MAP-21 
National Goal 

FAST Act 
National 
Planning 

Emphasis Area 

Livability 2040 
Goal 

Livability 2040 Objectives 
Livability 2040 System-

Level Performance 
Measures 

TIP Project Evaluation Criteria Federal Performance 
Measures 

Performance Targets for 
Federal Performance 

Measures 
Criteria Points 

Project Serves a Strategic 
Area Targeted for 
Development 

1 

Protect and 
enhance the 
environment, 
promote energy, 
conservation, 
improve quality of 
life, and promote 
consistency 
between 
transportation 
improvements and 
State and local 
planned growth 
and economic 
development 
patterns 

Goal 4.  
Advance corridor 
and community 
redevelopment 
opportunities to 
improve economic 
development and 
quality of life  

Objective 4.1 Encourage context 
sensitive solutions derived from 
integrated transportation/land 
use planning efforts  
Objective 4.2 Support complete 
streets implementation (on 
regional livability corridors)  
Objective 4.3 Encourage access 
management planning and design 
to maintain minimum level of 
service (on regional mobility 
corridors)  
Objective 4.4 Identify and 
mitigate freight/residential 
community conflict  

Number of projects identified 
through integrated planning 
effort (transportation/land 
use/economic development)  

Economic Vitality/ 
Freight 
Movement 

Support the 
economic vitality of 
the metropolitan 
area, especially by 
enabling global 
competitiveness, 
productivity, and 
efficiency 
Increase the 
accessibility and 
mobility of people 
and for freight 

Goal 5.  
Ensure the region is 
well positioned to 
remain a leader in 
global logistics and 
freight movement  
Goal 6.  
Improve 
multimodal access 
to community and 
employment 
resources  

Objective 5.1 Reduce truck delay 
on critical freight corridors and 
within key freight hubs  
Objective 5.2 Reduce intermodal 
conflict and delay  
Objective 5.3 Advance an 
Airport/Aerotropolis Traffic 
Management Authority (TMA)  
Objective 6.1 Improve bicycle and 
pedestrian access to educational, 
health, and recreational 
opportunities  
Objective 6.2 Expand transit 
service to unserved regional 
employment markets  
Objective 6.3 Focus complete 
streets upgrades in underserved 
regional markets with latent 
demand  
Objective 6.4 Expand rural human 
services transportation services 
into areas not currently served  
Objective 6.5 Improve system 
access for all system users  
Objective 6.6 Advance Travel 
Demand Management (TDM) 
strategies so support last mile 
connections for key employment 
origins and destination  

Annual Truck Hours Delay  
(Interstate System) 
 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Mileage 
(New Infrastructure, Total 
System)  
 
Population, Employment Served 
by Transit  
 
Mode Split  

Economic Vitality 6 Truck Travel Time Reliability 
Index (TTTR) 
 

- 

Freight Movement  6 

Network Continuity 2 

Page 24

ETC Item #4



 

7 
 

MAP-21 
National Goal 

FAST Act 
National 
Planning 

Emphasis Area 

Livability 2040 
Goal 

Livability 2040 Objectives 
Livability 2040 System-

Level Performance 
Measures 

TIP Project Evaluation Criteria Federal Performance 
Measures 

Performance Targets for 
Federal Performance 

Measures 
Criteria Points 

Congestion 
Reduction  

Promote efficient 
system 
management and 
operation 

Goal 7.  
Reduce travel delay 
for people and 
goods  
 

Objective 7.1 Address critical 
highway bottlenecks as a priority  
Objective 7.2 Focus capacity 
investment on corridor 
connections to regional 
employment centers  
Objective 7.3 Improve system 
operations through technology 
applications  
 

Annual Congestion Costs, 
Trucks/Auto  
 
Annual Vehicle Hours Delay  
National Highway System (NHS)  
 

Congestion Reduction Annual Hours of Peak Hour 
Excessive Delay Per Capita 

- 

Bicycle Related 
Improvements (Maximum 
Combined Points) 

4 

Percentage (%) of Non-Single 
Occupancy Vehicle (SOV) Travel 

- 

Pedestrian Related 
Improvements (Maximum 
Combined Points) 

4 

Transit Related 
Improvements 

4 

Regional Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Plan 

2 

System Reliability System Reliability Percent (%) of the Person-Miles 
Traveled on the Interstate that 
are reliable  

- 

Existing Volume to Capacity 
Ratio (V/C) 

4 

Travel Time Delay Reduction 10 

Utilizes CMP Strategies X2 

Percent (%) of the Person Miles 
Traveled on the Non-Interstate 
NHS that are reliable 

- 

*Note: The table does not include grouping project criteria. Grouping projects are evaluated based on criteria tailored to each grouping. (i.e. resurfacing projects, signalization projects, bicycle and pedestrian 

projects, etc.).

Page 25

ETC Item #4



 

8 
 

3.1)   Safety Performance Targets 

On November 16, 2017, the Memphis Urban Area Metropolitan Planning Organization Transportation Planning Board 

approved a resolution that the Memphis MPO will support each individual state’s safety targets, which are shown in the table 

below:  

Table 3.3 – State Safety Targets 

 

By agreeing to support the states’ (Mississippi and Tennessee) HSIP targets, the Memphis MPO agrees to: 

• Work with the states and safety stakeholders to address areas of concern for fatalities or serious injuries within the 
metropolitan planning area 

• Coordinate with the states and include the safety performance measures and the states’ HSIP targets for those 
measures in the long-range regional transportation plan (RTP) 

• Integrate into the metropolitan transportation planning process, the safety goals, objectives, performance measures 
and targets described in other state safety transportation plans and processes such as applicable portions of the 
HSIP, including the SHSP 

• Include a description in the TIP (Transportation Improvement Program) of the anticipated effect of the TIP toward 
achieving HSIP targets in the RTP, linking investment priorities in the TIP to those safety targets 
 

This addendum fulfills the MPO’s requirement to include safety performance measures and the states’ HSIP targets for federally 

required measures in the TIP (Transportation Improvement Program).  

The Memphis MPO will continue to coordinate with State and safety stakeholders to integrate each State’s safety goals, 

objectives, and plans into its planning process by linking investment priorities to the State’s safety targets to the maximum 

extent practicable. Furthermore, the Memphis MPO will continue to place an emphasis on maintaining and improving the 

safety of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users by continually implementing the goals and 

objectives related to safety outlined in the plan, and directing investments in the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

toward projects that have the potential to reduce crash rates, improve pedestrian safety, reduce speeds, enhance safety 

design, and incorporate security improvements.  

The TIP project selection process involves project ranking criteria such as accident rate, traffic calming and design 

improvements, and security improvements. These criteria are intended to measure the potential improvement to safety that 

the project will provide. As demonstrated in Table 3.2, the TIP places an emphasis on safety and security by applying more 

points to project evaluation criteria related to safety and security. In addition, the Signalization grouping, Bicycle and 

Pedestrian grouping, and Transportation Alternatives grouping emphasize safety and security by applying points to criteria 

related to safety and security. Projects that incorporate traffic calming and design improvements, incorporate security 

Safety 
Performance 
Measures 

5 Year Rolling Averages 

Tennessee (TDOT) Mississippi (MDOT) 

Baseline (2012-
2016) 

Target (2014-
2018) 

Baseline (2012-
2016) 

Target (2014-
2018) 

Number of 
Fatalities 

995.6 1021.4 633.8 677.8 

Fatality Rate 1.358 1.337 1.606 1.668 

Number of 
Serious Injuries 

7,319.4 7,630.8 567.6 574.4 

Serious Injury 
Rate 

9.976 9.982 1.439 1.425 

Number of Non-
Motorized 
Fatalities and 
Serious Injuries 

434.6 493.2 111.8 119.8 

Page 26

ETC Item #4



 

9 
 

improvements, and/or have the potential to improve safety at high crash locations have the potential to score higher in the 

project evaluation process. Therefore, it is anticipated that the TIP’s emphasis on safety related improvements will enable the 

MPO to contribute to state DOT Safety Performance Measure target achievement more effectively. Table 3.4 includes 

examples of projects that received high safety scores during the project evaluation process, and included as part of the FY 

2017-2020 TIP: 

Table 3.4 – Safety Project Examples 

Project Name Fiscal Year(s) Phase of Work 

Road Projects 

Elvis Presley Boulevard 2017-2019 PE-D/ROW/CONST 

Union Avenue Complete 
Street 

2017-2018 PE-N/PE-D/ROW 

Navy Road Streetscape 
and Median 

2017-2018 PE-D/ROW 

McIngvale Road 2017-2018 PE/ROW 

Signalization Grouping Projects 

Quince and Perkins - PE-N/PE-D/ROW/CONST 

Trinity and Walnut Bend - PE-N/PE-D/ROW/CONST 

Bethel Road and Business 
Center Drive 

- PE/CONST 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Grouping Projects 

Chelsea Ave Greenline - ROW/CONST 

Jefferson Ave Cycle Track - PE/CONST 

South Memphis 
Greenline 

- PE-D/ROW/CONST 

Transportation Alternatives 

Westmont Street 
Sidewalk Improvements 

- - 

Macon Rd. Sidewalk 
Improvements 

- - 

Hernando Square 
Pedestrian 
Improvements 

- - 

 

In addition, projects in the TIP are funded through a variety of programs (see Tables 1, 2, and 3 in the introduction of the TIP 

document). Sources with a special safety focus or that include eligibility for funding safety improvement projects include STP-

metropolitan (now STBG-M), TAP, and SRTS.  STP-State (now STBG-S), NHPP, and HSIP programs can and are used in 

part or in whole for safety improvement projects in the TIP, but are administered by TDOT and MDOT. 

Page 27

ETC Item #4



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   24 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page

Funding Sources
Fiscal Year 

2017

Fiscal Year

2018

Fiscal Year

2019

Fiscal Year

2020
Total

STBG-S Federal Funds $66,424,309 $2,645,909 $2,645,909 $2,645,909 $74,362,036

STBG-S State Funds $16,483,077 $661,477 $661,477 $661,477 $18,467,508

Total STBG-S $82,907,386 $3,307,386 $3,307,386 $3,307,386 $92,829,544

ACSTBG-S State Funds $0 $30,000,000 $0 $0 $30,000,000

Total ACSTBG-S $0 $30,000,000 $0 $0 $30,000,000

NHPP Federal Funds $127,809,665 $94,278,890 $38,847,264 $4,517,264 $265,453,083

NHPP State Funds $10,967,732 $23,569,722 $9,711,816 $941,816 $45,191,086

Total NHPP $138,777,397 $117,848,612 $48,559,080 $5,459,080 $310,644,169

R-NHPP Federal Funds $0 $248,375 $0 $0 $248,375

R-NHPP State Funds $0 $62,093 $0 $0 $62,093

Total R-NHPP $0 $310,468 $0 $0 $310,468

ACNHPP Federal Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACNHPP State Funds $12,165,000 $0 $0 $0 $12,165,000

Total ACNHPP $12,165,000 $0 $0 $0 $12,165,000

HSIP Federal Funds $1,486,689 $1,486,689 $1,486,689 $1,486,689 $5,946,756

HSIP State Funds $165,188 $165,188 $165,188 $165,188 $660,752

Total HSIP $1,651,877 $1,651,877 $1,651,877 $1,651,877 $6,607,508

STBG Federal Funds (MPO) $0 $10,000,000 $0 $0 $10,000,000

STBG State Funds $0 $2,500,000 $0 $0 $2,500,000

Total STBG $0 $12,500,000 $0 $0 $12,500,000

TOTAL FUNDING $235,501,660 $165,618,343 $53,518,343 $10,418,343 $465,056,689

TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE
$235,501,660 $165,618,343 $53,518,343 $10,418,343 $465,056,689

BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Amended 08.23.2018

SECTION A

TDOT PROJECTS
Funding & Expenditures Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

Page 28

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   24 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Old TIP Page

Funding Sources
Fiscal Year 

2017

Fiscal Year

2018

Fiscal Year

2019

Fiscal Year

2020
Total

STBG-S Federal Funds $66,424,309 $2,645,909 $2,645,909 $2,645,909 $74,362,036

STBG-S State Funds $16,483,077 $661,477 $661,477 $661,477 $18,467,508

Total STBG-S $82,907,386 $3,307,386 $3,307,386 $3,307,386 $92,829,544

NHPP Federal Funds $127,809,665 $94,278,890 $3,967,264 $4,517,264 $230,573,083

NHPP State Funds $10,967,732 $23,569,722 $991,816 $941,816 $36,471,086

Total NHPP $138,777,397 $117,848,612 $4,959,080 $5,459,080 $267,044,169

R-NHPP Federal Funds $0 $248,375 $0 $0 $248,375

R-NHPP State Funds $0 $62,093 $0 $0 $62,093

Total R-NHPP $0 $310,468 $0 $0 $310,468

ACNHPP Federal Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACNHPP State Funds $12,165,000 $0 $0 $0 $12,165,000

Total ACNHPP $12,165,000 $0 $0 $0 $12,165,000

HSIP Federal Funds $1,486,689 $1,486,689 $1,486,689 $1,486,689 $5,946,756

HSIP State Funds $165,188 $165,188 $165,188 $165,188 $660,752

Total HSIP $1,651,877 $1,651,877 $1,651,877 $1,651,877 $6,607,508

STBG Federal Funds (MPO) $0 $10,000,000 $0 $0 $10,000,000

STBG State Funds $0 $2,500,000 $0 $0 $2,500,000

Total STBG $0 $12,500,000 $0 $0 $12,500,000

TOTAL FUNDING $235,501,660 $135,618,343 $9,918,343 $10,418,343 $391,456,689

TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE
$235,501,660 $135,618,343 $9,918,343 $10,418,343 $391,456,689

BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Adjusted 06.15.2018

SECTION A

TDOT PROJECTS
Funding & Expenditures Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

Page 29

ETC Item #6



 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

31  Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  

 

Project Phase PE-N 11/20/01 PE-D 11/20/01 ROW 11/09/07 CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 145: 08/23/18

Adjustment 105: 05/10/17

Adjustment 120: 06/01/17

Adjustment 174: 07/12/17

Adjustment 314: 04/10/18

New TIP Page: Amendment 145

TIP # TDOT PIN # 100341.02 Horizon Year 2035 County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 5.08 miles RTP # 64 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $50,000,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2017 CONST STBG-S $20,000,000 $16,000,000 $4,000,000

2018 CONST ACSTBG-S $30,000,000 $30,000,000

Project Notes

Widen from 2 to 4 lane divided typical section

STIP# 79080

Amended 08.23.2018

TN-STBG-2017-02

TDOT

SR-14 (Austin Peay)

From SR-385 (Paul Barrett Parkway) to East of Kerrville-Rosemark Road (IA)

Page 30

ETC Item #6



 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

31  Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  

 

Project Phase PE-N 11/20/01 PE-D 11/20/01 ROW 11/09/07 CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History
Adjustment 105: 05/10/17

Adjustment 120: 06/01/17

Adjustment 174: 07/12/17

Adjustment 314: 04/10/18

Old TIP Page: Adjustment 314

TIP # TDOT PIN # 100341.02 Horizon Year 2035 County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 5.08 miles RTP # 64 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $20,000,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2017 CONST STBG-S $20,000,000 $16,000,000 $4,000,000

Project Notes

Adjusted 04.10.2018

TN-STBG-2017-02

TDOT

SR-14 (Austin Peay)

From SR-385 (Paul Barrett Parkway) to East of Kerrville-Rosemark Road

Widen from 2 to 4 lane divided typical section

STIP# 79080

Page 31

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   34 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 134: 08/23/18

New TIP Page: Amendment 134

TIP # TDOT PIN # 100340.00 Horizon Year 2025 County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 1.8 RTP # 161 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $85,000,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2019 ROW NHPP $43,200,000 $34,560,000 $8,640,000

Project Notes

Widen from 4 lanes to 6 lanes (divided).

Amended 08.23.2018

TN-NHPP-2019-01

TDOT

SR-4 (US-78/Lamar Avenue)

Raines Road/Perkins Road Interchange to SR-176 (Getwell Road) (IA)

Page 32

ETC Item #6



 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

35  Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  

 

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 135: 08/23/18

New TIP Page: Amendment 135

TIP # TDOT PIN # 124759.00 Horizon Year NA County
Shelby/ 

Fayette

Lead Agency Length 8.34 RTP # NA Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $4,000,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2019 PE-N NHPP $100,000 $80,000 $20,000

2019 PE-D NHPP $300,000 $240,000 $60,000

Project Notes

SR-385

ITS EXPANSION FROM MM 7 TO MM 15 (IA)

ITS Expansion to include the installation of a power and communication network and ITS devices such as 

CCTV cameras, DMS, and RDS.

Amended 08.23.2018

TN-NHPP-2019-02

TDOT

Page 33

ETC Item #6



                                                                                                       Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  50 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page

Funding Sources
Fiscal Year 

2017

Fiscal Year

2018

Fiscal Year

2019

Fiscal Year

2020
Total

Carry Over Funds (Federal 

STBG)
$84,505,035 $67,651,344 $46,930,127 $7,907,544 $84,505,035

Annual STBG Federal Funds $16,490,191 $17,200,301 $17,544,307 $17,895,193 $69,129,992

STBG Federal Funding $100,995,226 $84,851,645 $64,474,434 $25,802,737 $153,635,027

STBG Local Funds $8,060,999 $8,970,075 $12,523,488 $2,917,026 $32,471,588

STBG State Funds $199,680 $430,320 $820,000 $0 $1,450,000

STBG Expenditure $44,504,737 $50,021,913 $69,910,378 $18,230,067 $182,667,095

STBG-L Federal Funds $1,282,335 $0 $0 $0 $1,282,335

STBG-L Local Funds $320,584 $0 $0 $0 $320,584

STBG-L Expenditure $1,602,919 $0 $0 $0 $1,602,919

STBG-S Federal Funds $0 $6,082,160 $0 $8,812,278 $14,894,438

STBG-S State Funds $0 $98,393 $0 $0 $98,393

STBG-S Local Funds $0 $1,422,147 $0 $2,203,070 $3,625,217

STBG-S Expenditure $0 $7,602,700 $0 $11,015,348 $18,618,048

DEMO Federal Funds $1,606,702 $0 $0 $0 $1,606,702

DEMO Expenditure $1,606,702 $0 $0 $0 $1,606,702

ENH Federal Funds $1,725,618 $0 $0 $0 $1,725,618

ENH State Funds $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,000

ENH Local Funds $430,405 $0 $0 $0 $430,405

ENH Expenditure $2,157,023 $0 $0 $0 $2,157,023

FLAP Federal Funds $2,389,359 $0 $0 $0 $2,389,359

FLAP Local Funds $585,592 $0 $0 $0 $585,592

FLAP Expenditure $2,974,951 $0 $0 $0 $2,974,951

FBD Federal Funds $80,000 $720,000 $0 $0 $800,000

FBD Local Funds $20,000 $180,000 $0 $0 $200,000

FBD Expenditure $100,000 $900,000 $0 $0 $1,000,000

HIP Federal Funds $0 $3,165,727 $0 $0 $3,165,727

HIP Local Funds $0 $791,432 $0 $0 $791,432

HIP Expenditure $0 $3,957,159 $0 $0 $3,957,159

HPP Federal Funds $3,611,636 $0 $0 $0 $3,611,636

HPP Local Funds $902,909 $0 $0 $0 $902,909

HPP Expenditure $4,514,545 $0 $0 $0 $4,514,545

NHPP Federal Funds $0 $0 $9,200,000 $0 $9,200,000

NHPP State Funds $0 $0 $2,300,000 $0 $2,300,000

NHPP Expenditure $0 $0 $11,500,000 $0 $11,500,000

SRTS Federal Funds $0 $442,842 $0 $0 $442,842

SRTS Expenditure $0 $442,842 $0 $0 $442,842

TA Federal Funds $2,320,141 $3,466,824 $1,551,146 $0 $7,338,111

TA Local Funds $580,035 $866,706 $387,787 $0 $1,834,528

TA Expenditure $2,900,176 $4,333,530 $1,938,933 $0 $9,172,639

TA-S Federal Funds $588,501 $2,922,596 $0 $0 $3,511,097

TA-S Local Funds $147,125 $730,649 $0 $0 $877,774

TA-S Expenditure $735,626 $3,653,245 $0 $0 $4,388,871

Local Matching Funds $0 $175,113 $0 $0 $175,113

Local Match Expenditure $0 $175,113 $0 $0 $175,113

TOTAL FUNDING $128,748,023 $114,059,470 $91,256,855 $39,735,111 $245,710,267

TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE
$61,096,679 $67,129,343 $83,349,311 $29,245,415 $240,820,747

BALANCE $67,651,344 $46,930,127 $7,907,544 $10,489,696 $4,889,520

CONSTRUCTION SET-ASIDE $3,160,000

Note: Reference Appendix A for a complete list of the Construction Set-Aside Projects.

Amended 08.23.2018

SECTION C

TENNESSEE LOCAL PROJECTS
Funding & Expenditures Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

Page 34

ETC Item #6



                                                                                                       Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  50 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Old TIP Page

Funding Sources
Fiscal Year 

2017

Fiscal Year

2018

Fiscal Year

2019

Fiscal Year

2020
Total

Carry Over Funds (Federal 

STBG)
$84,505,035 $61,045,575 $39,326,499 $35,802,472 $84,505,035

Annual STBG Federal Funds $16,042,022 $16,202,442 $16,364,466 $16,528,111 $65,137,041

STBG Federal Funding $100,547,057 $77,248,017 $55,690,965 $52,330,583 $149,642,076

STBG Local Funds $9,601,399 $8,970,075 $4,173,889 $3,013,026 $25,758,389

STBG State Funds $199,680 $430,320 $0 $0 $630,000

STBG Expenditure $52,202,737 $50,021,913 $24,062,382 $18,710,067 $144,997,099

STBG-L Federal Funds $1,282,335 $0 $0 $0 $1,282,335

STBG-L Local Funds $320,584 $0 $0 $0 $320,584

STBG-L Expenditure $1,602,919 $0 $0 $0 $1,602,919

STBG-S Federal Funds $0 $6,082,160 $0 $8,812,278 $14,894,438

STBG-S State Funds $0 $98,393 $0 $0 $98,393

STBG-S Local Funds $0 $1,422,147 $0 $2,203,070 $3,625,217

STBG-S Expenditure $0 $7,602,700 $0 $11,015,348 $18,618,048

DEMO Federal Funds $1,606,702 $0 $0 $0 $1,606,702

DEMO Expenditure $1,606,702 $0 $0 $0 $1,606,702

ENH Federal Funds $1,725,618 $0 $0 $0 $1,725,618

ENH State Funds $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,000

ENH Local Funds $430,405 $0 $0 $0 $430,405

ENH Expenditure $2,157,023 $0 $0 $0 $2,157,023

FLAP Federal Funds $2,389,359 $0 $0 $0 $2,389,359

FLAP Local Funds $585,592 $0 $0 $0 $585,592

FLAP Expenditure $2,974,951 $0 $0 $0 $2,974,951

FBD Federal Funds $80,000 $720,000 $0 $0 $800,000

FBD Local Funds $20,000 $180,000 $0 $0 $200,000

FBD Expenditure $100,000 $900,000 $0 $0 $1,000,000

HPP Federal Funds $3,611,636 $0 $0 $0 $3,611,636

HPP Local Funds $902,909 $0 $0 $0 $902,909

HPP Expenditure $4,514,545 $0 $0 $0 $4,514,545

NHPP Federal Funds $0 $0 $9,200,000 $0 $9,200,000

NHPP State Funds $0 $0 $2,300,000 $0 $2,300,000

NHPP Expenditure $0 $0 $11,500,000 $0 $11,500,000

SRTS Federal Funds $0 $442,842 $0 $0 $442,842

SRTS Expenditure $0 $442,842 $0 $0 $442,842

TA Federal Funds $2,320,141 $3,466,824 $1,551,146 $0 $7,338,111

TA Local Funds $580,035 $866,706 $387,787 $0 $1,834,528

TA Expenditure $2,900,176 $4,333,530 $1,938,933 $0 $9,172,639

TA-S Federal Funds $588,501 $2,922,596 $0 $0 $3,511,097

TA-S Local Funds $147,125 $730,649 $0 $0 $877,774

TA-S Expenditure $735,626 $3,653,245 $0 $0 $4,388,871

Local Matching Funds $0 $175,113 $0 $0 $175,113

Local Match Expenditure $0 $175,113 $0 $0 $175,113

TOTAL FUNDING $129,840,254 $106,455,842 $73,303,787 $66,358,957 $234,184,117

TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE
$68,794,679 $67,129,343 $37,501,315 $29,725,415 $203,150,751

BALANCE $61,045,575 $39,326,499 $35,802,472 $36,633,542 $31,033,366

CONSTRUCTION SET-ASIDE $27,994,000

Note: Reference Appendix A for a complete list of the Construction Set-Aside Projects.

Adjusted 07.18.2018

SECTION C

TENNESSEE LOCAL PROJECTS
Funding & Expenditures Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

Page 35

ETC Item #6



                                                                                                       Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  56 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # 10619.00 Horizon Year 2020 County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 2.30 miles RTP # 40 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $27,709,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2019 CONST STBG $23,000,000 $18,400,000 $4,600,000

Project Notes

Amended 08.23.2018

STP-M-2006-03

Bartlett

Old Brownsville Road

Austin Peay to Kirby Whitten

Widen to a four lane divided roadway with a raised median and median openings and turn lanes for access 

to existing driveways.  Project scope will include designated bicycle facilities and ADA accessible pedestrian 

improvements.

Project Phase PE-N PE-D 01/23/07 ROW 10/22/14 CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 4: 08/23/18

Page 36

ETC Item #6



63 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # 119768.00 Horizon Year 2020 County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 0.34 miles RTP # 67 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $7,400,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds 

Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

$408,000 Yes 2017 ROW STBG $510,000 $408,000 $102,000

$390,720 Yes 2017 PE-D/ROW STBG $488,400 $390,720 $97,680

$1,401,280 Yes 2018 ROW STBG $1,751,600 $1,401,280 $350,320

2018 ROW STBG $400,000 $320,000 $80,000

2019 CONST STBG $4,100,000 $3,280,000 $820,000

Project Notes

Amended 08.23.2018

STP-M-2014-07

Germantown

Germantown Road at Wolf River Boulevard Intersection Improvements

Germantown Road at Wolf River Boulevard Intersection

Reconstruct intersection of Wolf River Boulevard and Germantown Road, with widening and reconstruction 

of traffic signals on Germantown Road from Brierbrook Road to Wolf Trail Cove.

Project Phase PE-N 02/25/14 PE-D 12/05/14 ROW

05/12/16

07/20/16

1/25/18

CONST

Amendments Adjustments
Amendment 3: 11/16/17

Amendment 4: 08/23/18
Adjustment 19: 04/16/18

Obligation History

Revision History

Page 37

ETC Item #6



63 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N 02/25/14 PE-D 12/05/14 ROW

05/12/16

07/20/16

1/25/18

CONST

Amendments AdjustmentsAmendment 3: 11/16/17 Adjustment 19: 04/16/18

Obligation History

Revision History

Old TIP Page: Adjustment 19

TIP # TDOT PIN # 119768.00 Horizon Year 2020 County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 0.34 miles RTP # 67 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $4,900,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds 

Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

$408,000 Yes 2017 ROW STBG $510,000 $408,000 $102,000

$390,720 Yes 2017 PE-D/ROW STBG $488,400 $390,720 $97,680

$1,401,280 Yes 2018 ROW STBG $1,751,600 $1,401,280 $350,320

2018 ROW STBG $400,000 $320,000 $80,000

Project Notes

Adjusted 04.16.2018

STP-M-2014-07

Germantown

Germantown Road at Wolf River Boulevard Intersection Improvements

Germantown Road at Wolf River Boulevard Intersection

Reconstruct intersection of Wolf River Boulevard and Germantown Road, with widening and reconstruction 

of traffic signals on Germantown Road from Brierbrook Road to Wolf Trail Cove.

Page 38

ETC Item #6



                                                                                                       Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  72 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # 108701.00 Horizon Year E+C County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 1.7 miles RTP # E+C Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $18,244,796

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2019 CONST STBG $15,622,996 $12,498,397 $3,124,599

Project Notes

Amended 08.23.2018

STP-M-2006-09

Memphis

Holmes Road East

Malone to Lamar

Widen existing two lane roadway to seven lanes.  Project will include sidewalk improvements, crosswalks, bike 

facilities, curb ramps, and modern traffic signals with camera detection and emergency vehicle preemption.

Project Phase PE-N 05/16/07 PE-D 05/16/07 ROW 12/15/11 CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amedment 4: 08/23/18

Page 39

ETC Item #6



69 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # 010620.00 Horizon Year 2020 County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 2.5 miles RTP # 71 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $11,445,876

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

Project Notes

Amended 08.23.2018

STP-M-2000-16

Memphis

Walnut Grove Road East

Walnut Bend Road to Rocky Point Road

Widen existing four and two lane roadway to six lanes with a median, eliminate sharp curves and realign 

Rocky Point Road intersection to improve safety.  This project will provide wide outside lanes for bikes. Project 

scope will include ADA accessible pedestrian improvements.

Project Phase PE-N 04/28/11 PE-D 05/02/07 ROW CONST

Amendments AdjustmentsAmendment 4: 08/23/18

Obligation History

Revision History

PROJECT 
REMOVED 

Page 40

ETC Item #6



69 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N 04/28/11 PE-D 05/02/07 ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Old TIP Page

TIP # TDOT PIN # 010620.00 Horizon Year 2020 County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 2.5 miles RTP # 71 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $11,445,876

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2017 ROW STBG $5,356,000 $4,284,000 $1,072,000

Project Notes

Adopted 08.25.2016

STP-M-2000-16

Memphis

Walnut Grove Road East

Walnut Bend Road to Rocky Point Road

Widen existing four and two lane roadway to six lanes with a median, eliminate sharp curves and realign 

Rocky Point Road intersection to improve safety.  This project will provide wide outside lanes for bikes. Project 

scope will include ADA accessible pedestrian improvements.

Page 41

ETC Item #6



                                                                                                       Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  70 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # 103376.00 Horizon Year 2020 County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 3.03 miles RTP # 325 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $12,931,864

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

Project Notes

Amended 08.23.2018

STP-M-2000-22

Memphis

Forest Hill Irene

Walnut Grove to Macon Road

Construct new six lane roadway with a median, adjacent bike path, sidewalks, and curb ramps. The project 

also includes an 1,100 foot extension of Trinity Road from Sanga Creek Road to Forest Hill Irene. Trinity Road 

will maintain a seven lane cross section.

Project Phase PE-N 03/15/07 PE-D 09/01/11 ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 4: 08/23/18

PROJECT 
REMOVED 

Page 42

ETC Item #6



                                                                                                       Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  70 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Old TIP Page

TIP # TDOT PIN # 103376.00 Horizon Year 2020 County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 3.03 miles RTP # 325 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $12,931,864

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2017 ROW STBG $2,342,000 $1,873,600 $468,400

Project Notes

Adopted 08.25.2016

STP-M-2000-22

Memphis

Forest Hill Irene

Walnut Grove to Macon Road

Construct new six lane roadway with a median, adjacent bike path, sidewalks, and curb ramps. The project 

also includes an 1,100 foot extension of Trinity Road from Sanga Creek Road to Forest Hill Irene. Trinity Road 

will maintain a seven lane cross section.

Project Phase PE-N 03/15/07 PE-D 09/01/11 ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Page 43

ETC Item #6



                                                                                                       Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  86 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # 123166.00 Horizon Year NA County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 1.05 miles RTP # Consistent Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $3,775,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

$95,600 2017 PE-D STBG $250,000 $200,000 $50,000

2018 ROW STBG $400,000 $320,000 $80,000

2019 CONST STBG $3,125,000 $2,500,000 $625,000

Project Notes

Millington

Navy Road Streetscape and Median

US-51 to Veterans Parkway

This is the second phase of the Navy Road Streetscape project. It includes the construction of paved 

crosswalks, sidewalk improvements, streetscape improvements, and the realignment of the intersection of 

Navy and Easley. Project scope will include shared bicycle lanes and ADA accessible pedestrian 

improvements.

Amended 08.23.2018

STP-M-2014-05

Project Phase PE-N 05/03/16 PE-D 01/22/18 ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 4: 08/23/18

Page 44

ETC Item #6



                                                                                                       Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  86 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N 05/03/16 PE-D 01/22/18 ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Old TIP Page

TIP # TDOT PIN # 123166.00 Horizon Year NA County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 1.05 miles RTP # Consistent Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $3,030,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

$95,600 2017 PE-D STBG $250,000 $200,000 $50,000

2018 ROW STBG $400,000 $320,000 $80,000

Project Notes

Adopted 08.25.2016

STP-M-2014-05

Millington

Navy Road Streetscape and Median

US-51 to Veterans Parkway

This is the second phase of the Navy Road Streetscape project. It includes the construction of paved 

crosswalks, sidewalk improvements, streetscape improvements, and the realignment of the intersection of 

Navy and Easley. Project scope will include shared bicycle lanes and ADA accessible pedestrian 

improvements.

Page 45

ETC Item #6



87 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # NA Horizon Year 2020 County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 0.74 miles RTP # 182 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $13,240,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

Project Notes

Wilkinsville Road

US-51 to Veterans Parkway

Extension of a 5 lane road through a newly developing area of the City. This project will create a pedestrian 

friendly roadway through a mixed use center that will function as the town center and connect to Veterans 

Parkway. 

Amended 08.23.2018

STP-M-2014-11

Millington

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 4: 08/23/18

PROJECT 
REMOVED 

Page 46

ETC Item #6



87 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Old TIP Page

TIP # TDOT PIN # NA Horizon Year 2020 County Shelby

Lead Agency Length 0.74 miles RTP # 182 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $13,240,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2020 PE-N STBG $480,000 $384,000 $96,000

Project Notes

Adopted 08.25.2016

STP-M-2014-11

Millington

Wilkinsville Road

US-51 to Veterans Parkway

Extension of a 5 lane road through a newly developing area of the City. This project will create a pedestrian 

friendly roadway through a mixed use center that will function as the town center and connect to Veterans 

Parkway. 

Page 47

ETC Item #6



                                                                                                       Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  110 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 4: 08/23/18

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # NA Horizon Year NA County
Shelby/

Fayette

Lead Agency Length NA RTP # NA Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $3,957,159

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2018

PE-N/PE-D/

ROW/     

CONST

HIP $3,957,159 $3,165,727 $791,432

Project Notes

Amended 08.23.2018

HIP-2018-01

Various

Highway Infrastructure Program

Memphis MPO Planning Area

This grouping will be used to fund projects under the U.S. Department of Transportation's Highway 

Infrastructure Programs set-aside.  Projects under this program must meet eligibility requirements, which 

include improvements, rehabilitation, and construction of highways and bridges.  

Funding for this program will lapse on September 30, 2021.

Page 48

ETC Item #6



1 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program    

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
  
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 B
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 G
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 H
 

APPENDIX-A 

Construction Set-Aside Project 

* If a project on the illustrative list project list meets the conditions outlined in the FY 2017-20 TIP policy showing readiness to 

go to construction, then an amendment could be made to replace a project on the construction set-aside list. 

Table A-1: Local Tennessee Fiscally Constrained Construction Set-Aside Projects 

New TIP Page: Amended 08.23.2018 

Ref TIP #s: 

STP-M-2006-03      STP-M-2014-05      

STP-M-2006-09      STP-M-2014-07 

Table A-4: Local Mississippi Illustrative Project List for Construction Set-Aside    

Table A-2: Local Mississippi Fiscally Constrained Construction Set-Aside Projects 

Table A-3: Local Tennessee Illustrative Project List for Construction Set-Aside    

TIP Number Project Name Agency FY Federal Funds

ENH-2010-01 Elvis Presley Blvd Memphis 2017 $3,160,000

Total $3,160,000

TIP Number Project Name Agency FY Federal Funds

MS-LSTP-2008-01 Pleasant Hill Road Widening Olive Branch 2019 $5,148,000

Total $5,148,000

TIP Number Project Name Agency FY Federal Funds

TCSP-2012-01 Donelson Farms Parkway Arlington 2019 $3,183,200

STP-M-2006-10 Kirby/ Whitten Parkway (Shelby Farms Parkway) Memphis 2019 $12,000,000

STP-M-2006-04 Plough Blvd Memphis 2020 $28,000,000

STBG-M-2017-04 Union Avenue Complete Street Memphis 2020 $10,560,000

STP-M-2000-22 Forest Hill Irene Memphis 2020 $12,584,937

STP-M-2000-16 Walnut Grove Road East Memphis 2019 $7,161,876

STP-M-2002-14 Holmes Road West Memphis 2019 $10,397,280

STP-M-2006-01 New Canada Road Lakeland 2019 $10,400,000

STBG-M-2017-06
Raleigh Millington Road at 385 Intersection 

Improvements
Millington 2020 $459,200

STP-M-2014-04 Walnut Grove Road Widening Shelby County 2019 $8,587,500

STBG-M-2017-07 Hacks Cross Road Improvements Shelby County 2019 $14,400,000

Total $117,733,993

TIP Number Project Name Agency FY Federal Funds

MS-LSTP-2015-02 Commerce Street Extension DeSoto County 2020 $2,446,400

MS-LSTBG-2017-01 McIngvale Widening and Realignment Hernando 2019 $7,152,000

Total $9,598,400

Tennessee

Illustrative Project List for Construction Set-Aside

Mississippi

Illustrative Project List for Construction Set-Aside

Tennessee

Fiscally Constrained Construction Set-Aside Projects

Mississippi

Fiscally Constrained Construction Set-Aside Projects

Page 49

ETC Item #6



1 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program    

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
  
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 B
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 G
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 H
 

APPENDIX-A 

Construction Set-Aside Project List 

* If a project on the illustrative list project list meets the conditions outlined in the FY 2017-20 TIP policy showing readiness to 

Table A-1: Local Tennessee Fiscally Constrained Construction Set-Aside Projects 

Old TIP Page: Adjusted 06.15.2018 

Ref TIP # TN-NHPP-2014-02 

TIP Number Project Name Agency FY Federal Funds

STP-M-2006-03 Old Brownsville Road Bartlett 2018 $18,400,000

STP-M-2014-07 Germantown Road at Wolf River Blvd Intersection
Germantown 2018 $1,400,000

ENH-2010-01 Elvis Presley Blvd Memphis 2017 $3,160,000

STP-M-2006-09 Holmes Road East Memphis 2017 $5,034,000

Total $27,994,000

TIP Number Project Name Agency FY Federal Funds

MS-LSTP-2008-01 Pleasant Hill Road Widening Olive Branch 2019 $5,148,000

Total $5,148,000

TIP Number Project Name Agency FY Federal Funds

TCSP-2012-01 Donelson Farms Parkway Arlington 2019 $3,183,200

STP-M-2006-10 Kirby/ Whitten Parkway (Shelby Farms Parkway) Memphis 2019 $12,000,000

STP-M-2006-04 Plough Blvd Memphis 2020 $28,000,000

STBG-M-2017-04 Union Avenue Complete Street Memphis 2020 $10,560,000

STP-M-2000-22 Forest Hill Irene Memphis 2020 $12,584,937

STP-M-2000-16 Walnut Grove Road East Memphis 2019 $7,161,876

STP-M-2002-14 Holmes Road West Memphis 2019 $10,397,280

STP-M-2014-05 Navy Road Streetscape Phase II Millington 2020 $1,520,000

STBG-M-2017-06
Raleigh Millington Road at 385 Intersection 

Improvements
Millington 2020 $459,200

STP-M-2014-04 Walnut Grove Road Widening Shelby County 2019 $8,587,500

STBG-M-2017-07 Hacks Cross Road Improvements Shelby County 2019 $14,400,000

Total $108,853,993

TIP Number Project Name Agency FY Federal Funds

MS-LSTP-2015-02 Commerce Street Extension DeSoto County 2020 $2,446,400

MS-LSTBG-2017-01 McIngvale Widening and Realignment Hernando 2019 $7,152,000

Total $9,598,400

Tennessee

Illustrative Project List for Construction Set-Aside

Mississippi

Illustrative Project List for Construction Set-Aside

Tennessee

Fiscally Constrained Construction Set-Aside Projects

Mississippi

Fiscally Constrained Construction Set-Aside Projects

Table A-4: Local Mississippi Illustrative Project List for Construction Set-Aside    

Table A-2: Local Mississippi Fiscally Constrained Construction Set-Aside Projects 

Table A-3: Local Tennessee Illustrative Project List for Construction Set-Aside    

Page 50

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   112 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page

Funding Sources
Fiscal Year 

2017

Fiscal Year

2018

Fiscal Year

2019

Fiscal Year

2020
Total

Carry Over Funds 

(Federal STBG)
$10,856,783 $6,270,777 $2,130,540 $3,213,042 $10,856,783

Annual STBG Federal Funds $2,974,689 $3,102,604 $3,164,656 $3,227,949 $12,469,898

STBG Federal Funding $13,831,472 $9,373,381 $5,295,196 $6,440,991 $23,326,681

STBG Local Funds $1,428,422 $2,899,586 $520,539 $54,600 $4,903,146

TA Federal Funds $960,644 $204,317 $212,715 $0 $1,377,676

TA Local Funds $240,161 $51,079 $53,179 $0 $344,419

Total TA $1,200,805 $255,396 $265,894 $0 $1,722,095

TE/SRTS Federal Funds $0 $1,410,000 $900,000 $0 $2,310,000

TE/SRTS State Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TE/SRTS Local Funds $0 $352,500 $225,000 $0 $577,500

Total TE/SRTS $0 $1,762,500 $1,125,000 $0 $2,887,500

TOTAL FUNDING $16,460,699 $14,290,863 $7,206,629 $6,495,592 $32,839,422

TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE
$10,189,922 $12,160,323 $3,993,587 $273,000 $26,616,832

BALANCE $6,270,777 $2,130,540 $3,213,042 $6,222,592 $6,222,590

CONSTRUCTION SET-ASIDE $5,148,000

Note: Reference Appendix A for the Construction Set-Aside Project.

Amended 08.23.2018

SECTION D

MISSISSIPPI LOCAL PROJECTS
Funding & Expenditures Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

Page 51

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   112 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Old TIP Page

Funding Sources
Fiscal Year 

2017

Fiscal Year

2018

Fiscal Year

2019

Fiscal Year

2020
Total

Carry Over Funds 

(Federal STBG)
$10,856,783 $5,998,779 $4,696,228 $5,371,089 $10,856,783

Annual STBG Federal Funds $2,702,691 $2,729,718 $2,757,015 $2,784,585 $10,974,009

STBG Federal Funding $13,559,474 $8,728,497 $7,453,243 $8,155,674 $21,830,792

STBG Local Funds $1,428,422 $806,143 $520,539 $54,600 $2,809,703

TA Federal Funds $960,644 $204,317 $212,715 $0 $1,377,676

TA Local Funds $240,161 $51,079 $53,179 $0 $344,419

Total TA $1,200,805 $255,396 $265,894 $0 $1,722,095

TE/SRTS Federal Funds $0 $1,410,000 $900,000 $0 $2,310,000

TE/SRTS State Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TE/SRTS Local Funds $0 $352,500 $225,000 $0 $577,500

Total TE/SRTS $0 $1,762,500 $1,125,000 $0 $2,887,500

TOTAL FUNDING $16,188,701 $11,552,536 $9,364,676 $8,210,275 $29,250,090

TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE
$10,189,922 $6,856,308 $3,993,587 $273,000 $21,312,817

BALANCE $5,998,779 $4,696,228 $5,371,089 $7,937,275 $7,937,273

CONSTRUCTION SET-ASIDE $5,148,000

Note: Reference Appendix A for the Construction Set-Aside Project.

Adjusted 07.18.2018

SECTION D

MISSISSIPPI LOCAL PROJECTS
Funding & Expenditures Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

Page 52

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   116 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N 09/25/17 PE-D 09/25/17 ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Revision History

Obligation History

Amendment 4: 08/23/18

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # MDOT PIN # Horizon Year 2035 County DeSoto 

Lead Agency Length 1.1 miles RTP # 37 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $10,000,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

$399,758 2017 PE/CONST STBG $640,000 $512,000 $128,000

2018 ROW/CONST STBG $406,000 $324,800 $81,200

2018 CONST STBG $5,304,015 $3,210,572 $2,093,443

Project Notes

Amended 08.23.2018

MS-LSTBG-2017-01

Hernando

McIngvale Road

Green T Road to Byhalia Road

Widen from 2 to 5 lanes with the realignment of McIngvale Road with I-269 intersection. Project scope will 

include designated bicycle facilites and ADA accessible pedestrians improvements.

The City of Hernando is providing the local match for the project. Additionally, DeSoto County has commited 

a $1 million local match.

Page 53

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   116 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N 09/25/17 PE-D 09/25/17 ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Revision History

Obligation History

Old TIP Page

TIP # MDOT PIN # Horizon Year 2035 County DeSoto 

Lead Agency Length 1.1 miles RTP # 37 Conformity Non-Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $10,000,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

$399,758 2017 PE STBG $640,000 $512,000 $128,000

2018 ROW STBG $406,000 $324,800 $81,200

Project Notes

Adopted 08.25.2016

MS-LSTBG-2017-01

Hernando

McIngvale Road

Green T Road to Byhalia Road

Widen from 2 to 5 lanes with the realignment of McIngvale Road with I-269 intersection. Project scope will 

include designated bicycle facilites and ADA accessible pedestrians improvements.

Page 54

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   130 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page

Funding Sources
Fiscal Year 

2017

Fiscal Year

2018

Fiscal Year

2019

Fiscal Year

2020
Total

Carry Over Funds 

(Federal CMAQ-M)
$1,716,328 $1,400,000 $0 $0 $3,116,328

CMAQ-M Federal Funding $1,716,328 $1,400,000 $0 $0 $3,116,328

Carry Over Funds 

(Local CMAQ-M)
$0 $350,000 $0 $0 $350,000

CMAQ-M Expenditure $0 $350,000 $0 $0 $350,000

CMAQ-S Federal Funds $20,954,290 $4,567,941 $21,195,168 $0 $46,717,399

CMAQ-S State Funds $92,445 $92,445 $0 $0 $184,890

CMAQ-S Local Funds $2,140,454 $915,275 $7,508,517 $0 $10,564,246

CMAQ-S Expenditure $23,187,189 $5,575,661 $28,703,685 $0 $57,466,535

TOTAL FUNDING $24,903,517 $7,325,661 $28,703,685 $0 $60,932,863

TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE
$24,903,517 $7,325,661 $28,703,685 $0 $60,932,863

BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Amended 08.23.2018

SECTION E

CONGESTION MITIGATION & AIR QUALITY PROJECTS

Funding & Expenditures Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

Page 55

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   130 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Old TIP Page

Funding Sources
Fiscal Year 

2017

Fiscal Year

2018

Fiscal Year

2019

Fiscal Year

2020
Total

Carry Over Funds 

(Federal CMAQ-M)
$1,716,328 $1,400,000 $0 $0 $3,116,328

CMAQ-M Federal Funding $1,716,328 $1,400,000 $0 $0 $3,116,328

Carry Over Funds 

(Local CMAQ-M)
$0 $350,000 $0 $0 $350,000

CMAQ-M Expenditure $0 $350,000 $0 $0 $350,000

CMAQ-S Federal Funds $20,954,290 $4,567,941 $0 $0 $25,522,231

CMAQ-S State Funds $92,445 $92,445 $0 $0 $184,890

CMAQ-S Local Funds $2,140,454 $915,275 $0 $0 $3,055,729

CMAQ-S Expenditure $23,187,189 $5,575,661 $0 $0 $28,762,850

TOTAL FUNDING $24,903,517 $7,325,661 $0 $0 $32,229,178

TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE
$24,903,517 $7,325,661 $0 $0 $32,229,178

BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Amended 02.23.2017

SECTION E

CONGESTION MITIGATION & AIR QUALITY PROJECTS

Funding & Expenditures Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

Page 56

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   132 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments
Amendment 1: 02/23/17

Amendment 4: 08/23/18

Obligation History

Revision History

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # 125428.00 Horizon Year NA County Shelby

Lead Agency Length NA RTP # NA Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $350,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds 
Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

$80,000 2017 OPERATIONS CMAQ-S $100,000 $80,000 $20,000

2019 OPERATIONS CMAQ-S $250,000 $200,000 $50,000

Project Notes

CMAQ-2008-02

Amended 08.23.2018

SCHD

Air Quality Outreach

NA

The Shelby County Health Department will demonstrate the air quality benefits of improved public awareness 

through continuing the major public education and outreach campaign focused on clean air.  The goal of 

this project is to educate the public, area leaders, educators, and businesses about connections among trip 

making and transportation alternatives, traffic congestion, and air quality.  This campaign will help the Shelby 

County nonattainment and maintenance area reduce emissions and congestion by inducing drivers to 

change their transportation choices and reduce the number of single occupant vehicles from the road.

The continuation of this project is being funded through TDOT with a December 2016 CMAQ grant (1st line 

item) and a 2017 CMAQ grant (2nd line item).

Page 57

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   132 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Old TIP Page: Amendment 1

TIP # TDOT PIN # 125428.00 Horizon Year NA County Shelby

Lead Agency Length NA RTP # NA Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $100,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds 
Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

$80,000 2017 OPERATIONS CMAQ-S $100,000 $80,000 $20,000

Project Notes

Amended 02.23.2017

CMAQ-2008-02

SCHD

Air Quality Outreach

NA

The Shelby County Health Department will demonstrate the air quality benefits of improved public awareness 

through continuing the major public education and outreach campaign focused on clean air.  The goal of 

this project is to educate the public, area leaders, educators, and businesses about connections among trip 

making and transportation alternatives, traffic congestion, and air quality.  This campaign will help the Shelby 

County nonattainment and maintenance area reduce emissions and congestion by inducing drivers to 

change their transportation choices and reduce the number of single occupant vehicles from the road.

The continuation of this project is being funded through TDOT with a December 2016 CMAQ grant.

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments AdjustmentsAmendment 1: 02/23/17

Obligation History

Revision History

Page 58

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   138 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 4: 08/23/18

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # NA Horizon Year NA County Shelby

Lead Agency Length NA RTP # NA Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $1,023,525

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds 
Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

$196,108 Yes 2017 OPERATIONS CMAQ-S $245,135 $196,108 $49,027

2018 OPERATIONS CMAQ-S $200,565 $160,452 $40,113

2019 OPERATIONS CMAQ-S $577,825 $462,260 $115,565

Project Notes

Amended 08.23.2018

CMAQ-2015-03

Memphis Innovate

Commute Options Travel Demand Management Initiative

NA

Develop employer program to reduce drive-alone commuting and increase use of transit, bicycling, rideshare 

and walking among employees and students. Develop marketing and outreach tools, pilot strategies with six 

employers during grant period, and establish replicable program for ongoing use. 

This project is being funded through TDOT with an August 2015 CMAQ grant (1st and 2nd line item). 

The continuation of this project is being funded through TDOT with a 2017 CMAQ grant (3rd line item).

Page 59

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   138 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Old TIP Page

TIP # TDOT PIN # NA Horizon Year NA County Shelby

Lead Agency Length NA RTP # NA Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $445,700

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds 
Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

$196,108 Yes 2017 OPERATIONS CMAQ-S $245,135 $196,108 $49,027

2018 OPERATIONS CMAQ-S $200,565 $160,452 $40,113

Project Notes

Memphis Innovate

Commute Options Travel Demand Management Initiative

NA

Develop employer program to reduce drive-alone commuting and increase use of transit, bicycling, rideshare 

and walking among employees and students. Develop marketing and outreach tools, pilot strategies with six 

employers during grant period, and establish replicable program for ongoing use. 

This project is being funded through TDOT with an August 2015 CMAQ grant. 

Adopted 08.25.2016

CMAQ-2015-03

Page 60

ETC Item #6



147 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 4: 08/23/18

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # Horizon Year NA County Shelby

Lead Agency Length NA RTP # NA Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $990,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds 
Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2019
PE-N/PE-D/

ROW/CONST
CMAQ-S $990,000 $990,000

Project Notes

Amended 08.23.2018

CMAQ-2018-01

Memphis

Memphis New Traffic Signals

Bartlett Road/Pleasant View Road & Walnut Grove Road/ Timber Creek Road/Country  Squire Lane

Installation of two new traffic signals, one at the intersection of Bartlett Road and Pleasant View Road and the 

other at the intersection of Walnut Grove Road and Timber Creek Road/Country Squire Lane.

This project is being funded through TDOT with a 2017 CMAQ grant.

Page 61

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   148 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 4: 08/23/18

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # Horizon Year NA County Shelby

Lead Agency Length NA RTP # NA Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $1,230,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds 
Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2019
PE-N/PE-D/

ROW/CONST
CMAQ-S $1,230,000 $1,230,000

Project Notes

Coordination of the operation of the 6 traffic signals along Democrat Road, from Airways to Lamar.

This project is being funded through TDOT with a 2017 CMAQ grant.

Amended 08.23.2018

CMAQ-2018-02

Memphis

Democrat Road Signal System

Democrat Road from Airways to Lamar

Page 62

ETC Item #6



149 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 4: 08/23/18

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # Horizon Year NA County Shelby

Lead Agency Length NA RTP # NA Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $2,949,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds 
Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2019
PE-N/PE-D/

ROW/CONST
CMAQ-S $2,949,000 $1,769,400 $1,179,600

Project Notes This project is being funded through TDOT with a 2017 CMAQ grant.

Amended 08.23.2018

CMAQ-2018-03

Memphis

Hollywood Street Project

Various Locations

This project will add protected bicycle-pedestrian facilities on and adjacent to two perpendicular streets in 

North Memphis, Chelsea Avenue and Hollywood Street. The Chelsea Avenue section will be a continuation of 

the Chelsea Avenue Greenline, a separated and paved greenway trail. The Hollywood Street section will be 

an on-street protected bicycle facility.

Page 63

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   150 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 4: 08/23/18

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # Horizon Year NA County Shelby

Lead Agency Length NA RTP # NA Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $8,109,900

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds 
Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2019
PE-N/PE-D/

ROW/CONST
CMAQ-S $8,109,900 $4,865,940 $3,243,960

Project Notes

Various Locations

This project will fill connectivity gaps by adding appropriate bicycle-pedestrian facilities on North Watkins 

Street, Cleveland Street, Belleview Boulevard, and Elvis Presley Boulevard.

This project is being funded through TDOT with a 2017 CMAQ grant.

Amended 08.23.2018

CMAQ-2018-04

Memphis

Watkins-Presley On-Street Project

Page 64

ETC Item #6



151 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program  

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # Horizon Year NA County Shelby

Lead Agency Length NA RTP # NA Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $13,900,000

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds 
Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2019 PURCHASE CMAQ-S $13,900,000 $11,120,000 $2,780,000

Project Notes

MATA

Fixed-Route Bus Electrification Project

NA

This project will fund 10 all-electric buses, 8 electric charging stations, and 4 opportunity charging stations.

This project is being funded through TDOT with a 2017 CMAQ grant.

Amended 08.23.2018

CMAQ-2018-05

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments Adjustments

Obligation History

Revision History

Amendment 4: 08/23/18

Page 65

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   152 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

T
R

A
N

S
IT

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # Horizon Year NA County Shelby

Lead Agency Length NA RTP # NA Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $696,960

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds 
Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2019
PE-N/PE-D/

ROW/CONST
CMAQ-S $696,960 $557,568 $139,392

Project Notes

Amended 08.23.2018

CMAQ-2018-06

University of Memphis

Bike Share: Installation and Promotion of Campus Smart Bike Share

NA

Install 6 bike share stations and 60 bikes at the University of Memphis to expand and integrate with the city-

wide bike share system. Additionally, the project will provide 2,227 year-long memberships for U of M students 

and employees on a first-come, first-serve basis.

This project is being funded through TDOT with a 2017 CMAQ grant.

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments AdjustmentsAmendment 4: 08/23/18

Obligation History

Revision History

Page 66

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   146 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

New TIP Page

Funding Sources
Fiscal Year 

2017

Fiscal Year

2018

Fiscal Year 

2019

Fiscal Year

2020
Total

5307 Federal Funds $14,392,000 $14,392,000 $14,392,000 $14,392,000 $57,568,000

5307 State Funds $1,799,000 $1,799,000 $1,799,000 $1,799,000 $7,196,000

5307 Local Funds $1,799,000 $1,799,000 $1,799,000 $1,799,000 $7,196,000

Total 5307 $17,990,000 $17,990,000 $17,990,000 $17,990,000 $71,960,000

5309 Federal Funds $0 $1,600,000 $2,000,000 $27,984,000 $31,584,000

5309 State Funds $0 $200,000 $250,000 $3,498,000 $3,948,000

5309 Local Funds $0 $200,000 $250,000 $3,498,000 $3,948,000

Total 5309 $0 $2,000,000 $2,500,000 $34,980,000 $39,480,000

5310 Federal Funds (TN) $25,000 $1,475,000 $1,050,000 $1,050,000 $3,600,000

5310 State Funds (TN) $0 $293,750 $240,625 $240,625 $775,000

5310 Local Funds (TN) $0 $293,750 $240,625 $240,625 $775,000

Total TN 5310 $25,000 $2,062,500 $1,531,250 $1,531,250 $5,150,000

5310 Federal Funds (MS) $104,804 $106,725 $108,859 $111,036 $431,424

5310 State Funds (MS) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

5310 Local Funds (MS) $61,561 $62,701 $63,955 $65,234 $253,451

Total MS 5310 $166,365 $169,426 $172,814 $176,270 $684,875

5337 Federal Funds $2,160,000 $1,760,000 $1,760,000 $1,760,000 $7,440,000

5337 State Funds $270,000 $220,000 $220,000 $220,000 $930,000

5337 Local Funds $270,000 $220,000 $220,000 $220,000 $930,000

Total 5337 $2,700,000 $2,200,000 $2,200,000 $2,200,000 $9,300,000

5339 Federal Funds $10,940,000 $10,934,235 $13,580,000 $41,580,000 $77,034,235

5339 State Funds $282,500 $791,317 $147,500 $147,500 $1,368,817

5339 Local Funds $2,452,500 $2,469,505 $3,247,500 $10,247,500 $18,417,005

Total 5339 $13,675,000 $14,195,057 $16,975,000 $51,975,000 $96,820,057

CMAQ-S Federal Funds $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $400,000

CMAQ-S Local Funds $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $100,000

Total STBG $125,000 $125,000 $125,000 $125,000 $500,000

TOTAL FUNDING $34,681,365 $38,741,983 $41,494,064 $108,977,520 $223,894,932

TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE
$34,681,365 $38,741,983 $41,494,064 $108,977,520 $223,894,932

BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

SECTION F

TRANSIT PROJECTS
Funding & Expenditures Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

Amended 08.23.2018

Page 67

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   146 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Old TIP Page

Funding Sources
Fiscal Year 

2017

Fiscal Year

2018

Fiscal Year 

2019

Fiscal Year

2020
Total

5307 Federal Funds $14,392,000 $14,392,000 $14,392,000 $14,392,000 $57,568,000

5307 State Funds $1,799,000 $1,799,000 $1,799,000 $1,799,000 $7,196,000

5307 Local Funds $1,799,000 $1,799,000 $1,799,000 $1,799,000 $7,196,000

Total 5307 $17,990,000 $17,990,000 $17,990,000 $17,990,000 $71,960,000

5309 Federal Funds $0 $1,600,000 $2,000,000 $27,984,000 $31,584,000

5309 State Funds $0 $200,000 $250,000 $3,498,000 $3,948,000

5309 Local Funds $0 $200,000 $250,000 $3,498,000 $3,948,000

Total 5309 $0 $2,000,000 $2,500,000 $34,980,000 $39,480,000

5310 Federal Funds (TN) $25,000 $1,475,000 $1,050,000 $1,050,000 $3,600,000

5310 State Funds (TN) $0 $293,750 $240,625 $240,625 $775,000

5310 Local Funds (TN) $0 $293,750 $240,625 $240,625 $775,000

Total TN 5310 $25,000 $2,062,500 $1,531,250 $1,531,250 $5,150,000

5310 Federal Funds (MS) $104,804 $106,725 $108,859 $111,036 $431,424

5310 State Funds (MS) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

5310 Local Funds (MS) $61,561 $62,701 $63,955 $65,234 $253,451

Total MS 5310 $166,365 $169,426 $172,814 $176,270 $684,875

5337 Federal Funds $2,160,000 $1,760,000 $1,760,000 $1,760,000 $7,440,000

5337 State Funds $270,000 $220,000 $220,000 $220,000 $930,000

5337 Local Funds $270,000 $220,000 $220,000 $220,000 $930,000

Total 5337 $2,700,000 $2,200,000 $2,200,000 $2,200,000 $9,300,000

5339 Federal Funds $10,940,000 $9,580,000 $13,580,000 $41,580,000 $75,680,000

5339 State Funds $282,500 $147,500 $147,500 $147,500 $725,000

5339 Local Funds $2,452,500 $2,247,500 $3,247,500 $10,247,500 $18,195,000

Total 5339 $13,675,000 $11,975,000 $16,975,000 $51,975,000 $94,600,000

CMAQ-S Federal Funds $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $400,000

CMAQ-S Local Funds $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $100,000

Total STBG $125,000 $125,000 $125,000 $125,000 $500,000

TOTAL FUNDING $34,681,365 $36,521,926 $41,494,064 $108,977,520 $221,674,875

TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE
$34,681,365 $36,521,926 $41,494,064 $108,977,520 $221,674,875

BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Adjusted 12.07.2017

SECTION F

TRANSIT PROJECTS
Funding & Expenditures Fiscal Years 2017 - 2020

Page 68

ETC Item #6



 Memphis MPO FY 2017-20 Transportation Improvement Program   172 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 
T

D
O

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

M
D

O
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 M

S
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

C
M

A
Q

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

 
T

R
A

N
S

IT
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

L
O

C
A

L
 T

N
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 

Project Phase PE-N PE-D ROW CONST

Amendments AdjustmentsAmendment 4: 08/23/18

Obligation History

Revision History

New TIP Page: Amendment 4

TIP # TDOT PIN # NA Horizon Year NA County Shelby

Lead Agency Length NA RTP # NA Conformity Exempt

Project Name Total Cost $2,220,057

Termini/ 

Intersection

Project 

Description

Obligated Funds 
Timely 

Obligation

Fiscal 

Year

Phase of 

Work

Funding 

Type

Total 

Funds

Federal 

Funds

State 

Funds

Local 

Funds

2018

PE-N/

PE-D/ROW/

CONST

5339 $2,220,057 $1,354,235 $643,817 $222,005

Project Notes

Amended 08.23.2018

5339-2018-01

MATA

Paratransit Vehicles

NA

This project provides funding for the purchase of up to 50 paratransit vehicles using FY 2018 Section 5339 

funds. These vehicles generally have a service life of 4 years or 100,000 miles, whichever comes first and will 

replace some of MATA's paratransit vehicles that have met their useful service life,  allowing MATA to 

expand its paratransit fleet for improved demand-response service. All vehicles will be replaced in 

accordance with FTA's currently rolling stock policy.

Page 69

ETC Item #6




